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Corporate Information

NEEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)

Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangcheng

Mr. XU Xinhua

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. WONG Wai Tung
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

| 7th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR

Sidley Austin

Level 39, Two Intemational Finance Centre
8 Finance Street
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Hong Kong

AUDITOR
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Shenzhen Tairan Sub-branch,

China Construction Bank Co., Limited
I'st Floor, No.304 Building, Third Area
Che Gongmiao Tairan Industrial Area
Futian District, Shenzhen, PRC

Shenzhen Dongmen Sub-branch,

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Co,, Limited
[-2 Floor, Jinxiu Building

No. 1010 Wenjin Middle Road

Luohu District, Shenzhen, PRC

Shenzhen Gaoxinyuan Sub-branch,
China Everbright Bank Co., Limited
No.|088 Shennan Avenue
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, PRC

STOCK CODE
3773

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.nnk.com.hk
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), | herein present
the annual report of NNK Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to mobile users
through electronic banking systems of PRC banks, offline channels including convenience
stores, mobile phone stores and other third party retailer chains, and other channels

including third-party online platforms, its own websites and WeChat public account.

During the vyear ended 3| December 2018, due to the intensified competition in
mobile top-up service industry, the Group experienced decline in both mobile top-
up requests through its channels partners and average discount rate received from the
PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors. The number of mobile top-up
requests processed by 007ka top-up platform was approximately 135.2 million in 2018,
representing a decrease of approximately 5.8% as compared with approximately 143.5
million in 2017. The gross transaction value with mobile users (including mobile top-up
and data usage top-up services) decreased by approximately |1.9% to approximately
RMB10,601.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately
RMB12,038.5 million for the year ended 3| December 2017. The average discount rate
that the Company received from the PRC telecommunication operators, their distributors
and other channels decreased from approximately 0.7% for the year ended 3| December
2017 to approximately 0.6% for the year ended 31 December 2018. These translated into
approximately 27.7% decline in the Group's revenue of approximately RMB60.3 million in
2018 when compared with approximately RMB83.3 million recorded in 2017.
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To re-mediate the current market condition, the Group has made effort to expand its user
base by expanding its bank network, deepening its cooperation with major PRC banks,
internet companies and e-commerce platforms, and increase its services provided through
its platform. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cooperative relationships with 66
PRC banks, including five largest state-owned commercial banks and 10 of the 12 nation-
wide joint stock commercial banks, as compared with 62 PRC banks as at 3| December
2017. Besides, the Group has expanded its cooperation with certain major PRC banks by
supplying mobile and data usage top-up for promotion activities in these banks on their
websites and mobile applications. The gross transaction value contributed from those
promotion activities increased by approximately 84.1% to approximately RMB322.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately RMBI75.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Group will expand such service provided to major PC

banks in order to seek a breakthrough in the current business model.

The management made great effort to optimise the Group's operation procedures.
During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group had undergone restructuring, with
an aim to improve the operating efficiency. The cost-saving was reflected in the reduction
in the distribution and selling expenses and staff costs in 2018 when compared in 2017.
The Group will continue to review and adjust its cost structure to ensure it to be in line

with the future business development.

Notwithstanding the above measures taken, due to the overall reduction of mobile top-
up requests received by the Group and the decrease in average discount rate provided
by the PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors, the loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2018 increased by 35.7% to
approximately RMB25.8 million from approximately RMB19.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®|E

OUTLOOK

As mentioned in the 2017 annual report and 2018 interim report of the Company,
with the continuing reduction of discounts offered by the operators and their major
distributors, the mobile top-up service industry in the PRC will continue to face challenge.
In view of rapid development of mobile banking service in the PRC, major PRC banks are
now putting more effort and investment in their mobile banking APPs, including enriching
their contents by increasing services provided by the APPs, and providing gifts (such as
discount coupons) in attracting the use of their APPs, in order to enhance the user volume
and satisfaction. Being one of the major mobile top-up service provider through electronic
banking channel with extensive experience and cooperation with major PRC banks over a
decade, the Group is taking this opportunity to strive for deepening its cooperation with
PRC banks and the operators, and expand the Company's service offerings in existing
channels. Moreover, the Group will actively seek for opportunities to cooperate with the
leading internet companies and e-commerce companies and strive for the market share
in those e-commerce channels. The Group will also continue to optimise the Group's
operational procedure to reduce the operating cost and improve the efficiency of its

workflow.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff and management team for their dedication and contribution in the
past vear, as well as to our shareholders and business partners for their confidence and

support to the Group.

Huang Junmou

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
The following table sets forth the Group's income statement for the year ended 31

December 2018 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2017:
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Year ended 3| December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2018 2017 Change
—E-NE —T—+F -
RMB'000 RMB000 %

AR®TR ARETT

Revenue A

Cost of revenue WABA

Gross Profit E7

Other income and expenses Hip A R %
Distribution and selling expenses A H R ER X
Administrative expenses TR

Research and development expenses Diki{b3

Finance costs BIERAR

Loss before tax BRBAIER
Income tax (expense) credit et (Ax) B

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company A2 R E AL FAEE

Revenue

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB60.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 27.7% as compared with
approximately RMB83.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease of
revenue was primarily due to the decrease in mobile top-up requests through electronic
banking systems and offline channels and the decline of average discount rate received

from the PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors.

60,280 83,32 277%
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24318 43364 439%
7,955 (713) 1215.7%
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(28,803) (27.195) 59%
(9,200) (13017) 29.3%
(4,375) (6,393) 316%
21,610) (19.729) 9.5%
(4.224) €91 711.3%
(25,834) (19,038) 35.7%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE n—.l-nﬂ?]& *ﬁ'

Gross Transaction Value with Mobile Users

The gross transaction value with mobile users decreased by approximately |1.9%
to approximately RMB10,601.6 million for the year ended 3| December 2018 from
approximately RMB12,038.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease
was mainly due to the decline in mobile top-up requests through electronic banking
systems and offline channels as an increasing number of mobile users chose to top-up
via e-commerce platforms. The gross transaction value via electronic banking systems
decreased by approximately |3.4% to approximately RMB5,539.8 million for the year
ended 3| December 2018 from approximately RMB6,395.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. The gross transaction value through offline channels decreased by
approximately 66.8% to approximately RMB189.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately RMB571.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
gross transaction value through other channels including third-party online platforms,
the Group's own websites and WeChat public account decreased by approximately
3.9% to approximately RMB4,872.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
approximately RMB5,07 1.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Gross Transaction Value with PRC Telecommunication Operators, their Distributors
and other Channels

The average discount rate that the Company received from the PRC telecommunication
operators, their distributors and other channels decreased from approximately 0.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately 0.6% for the year ended 3|
December 2018. The gross transaction value with the PRC telecommunication operators,
their distributors and other channels decreased by approximately | 1.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2017, which

was in line with the decrease in the gross transaction value with mobile users.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased by approximately 7.2% to approximately RMB35.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately RMB38.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017, primarily due to decrease in commission fees charged by PRC
banks for handling mobile top-up service requests via their electronic banking systems, as

a result of the decrease in the gross transaction value with mobile users.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased by approximately 43.9% to approximately RMB24.3 million for the
year ended 3| December 2018 from approximately RMB43.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Group's overall gross profit margin decreased to approximately 40.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 from approximately 52.0% for the year ended 31 December
2017, mainly due to decrease in the average discount rate that the Company received

from the PRC telecommunication operators, their distributors and other channels.

Other Income and Expenses

The Group recorded a net income of approximately RMB8.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 as compared with a net expenses of approximately RMBO.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. Such increase was primarily due to (i) an one-
off subsidy of approximately RMBI.9 million was granted by the relevant government
authority to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 in relation to research and
development expenses incurred in prior years, (i) unrealised net exchange gain from bank
balances denominated in Hong Kong dollars of approximately RMBI.2 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: unrealised net exchange loss of approximately RMB2.6 million)
as a result of the depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars for the year ended
31 December 2018, and (iii) the decrease in allowance for doubtful debt of approximately

HK$3.9 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE n—.l-nﬂ?]& *ﬁ'

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately 27.1% to approximately
RMBI.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately RMBI5.8
million for the year ended 3| December 2017, primarily due to the decrease in sales

promotion expenses and staff costs.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 5.9% to approximately RMB28.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately RMB27.2 million for
the year ended 3| December 2017, primarily due to the increase in rental expenses and

professional fees.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses decreased by approximately 29.3% to approximately
RMB9.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately RMB13.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily due to the decrease in

depreciation cost of computers and office equipment.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately 31.6% to approximately RMB4.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2017, primarily due to the decrease in interest expenses on bank borrowings
as a result of the decrease in average bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2018.

1 2 NNK Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income Tax Expense (Credit)

Pursuant to the VIE Arrangement (as defined in note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this annual report), Shenzhen Niannianka Network Technology Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhen NNK" or the “PRC Operating Entity”) would pay the management fee to
Daily Charge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Daily Charge Shenzhen"). For the year
ended 3| December 2015, the tax rate of Daily Charge Shenzhen was 25% while the
tax rate of Shenzhen NNK was [5%. The payment of management fee would raise the
additional tax burden to the Group as a whole. In this regard, the Group had recognised

the related tax impact in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The income tax expense of approximately RMB4.2 million for the year ended 3|
December 2018 mainly represented the reversal of deferred tax asset by Shenzhen NNK
in respect of deductible management fee expense, as the amount is not expected to be

utilised prior to its expiration.

Loss for the year attributable to Owners of the Company
As a result of cumulative effects of foregoing, loss for the year ended 31 December 2018
increased by 35.7% to approximately RMB25.8 million from approximately RMB19.0

million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
The Group's working capital was funded by cash from operating activities, bank loans and

proceeds from global offering. Certain financial data are summarized as follows:

BEEENWR DN

FEHimMx (E%)

RIEAENSERLHE (ERERAFHRES
MBHmEME) - RIFFRBRBRRE
Raa ( TRIFEEFEFR] % [PEEER
B) BRRAXERKZ CRI) BRAF
([RRZERY] ) xHEBRE -BE_F
—AF+-A=t—BLEFE  RRERFRYI
MR R A325% @ AR FFERABHELS15% °
XNEREREMAEEEENBIMNIEE
EoptE - AREERBEERBEER
ARETRIEARERE -

RBE-Z-N\FTZA=1T—RLFEMN
FIERAXROARK42BEET T2
[ & R Y4 & R H0 TR0 72 B 5 S P AR
HIEERIABE » Mo BB AL M A
& -

AAREAAREERER

MR FBRENZRFTE  FEEREREE
TEHFT AT -HUEFEAARK
190BBLENMBI¥EEHET—N\F+=
A=T—HIEFEHARBLBBET °

RBEE  WBERREFER
AEENZELSHKERDAERE R
TERRERBREMENARN - ETHH
BRI -

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+—-H

2018 2017

“E-N\F ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReEEY 115,822 144,821
Net current assets mEEEFE 182.894 201,526
Net cash from (used in) operating activities mEESME (R R FE 53,167 (8,329)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities REEH(MA)MEREFEE (88,375) 27,647
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE n—.l-nﬂ?]& *ﬁ'

As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
RMBI 15.9 million, as compared with approximately RMB144.8 million as at 31 December
2017. The Group reported net current assets of approximately RMB182.9 million as at 31
December 2018, as compared with approximately RMB201.5 million as at 31 December
2017. The Group's current ratio was approximately 2.36 as at 31 December 2018, as
compared with approximately 1.98 as at 3|1 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, net cash from operating activities was
approximately RMB53.2 million, as compared with net cash used in operating activities of
approximately RMB8.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. For the year ended
31 December 2018, net cash used in financing activities was approximately RMB88.4
million, as compared with net cash from financing activities of approximately RMB27.6

million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The bank borrowings of the Group decreased by approximately 67.7% to approximately
RMB40.0 million as at 31 December 2018 from approximately RMBI124.0 million as at
31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the total bank borrowings, being interest-
bearing bank borrowings which were dominated in Renminbi, carried interest rates
ranging from 5.35% to 6.09% (3| December 2017: 5.00% to 5.44%) per annum and were

repayable within one year.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from PRC banks in relation to our mobile
top-up service. Trade receivable increased from approximately RMB58.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMBI 18.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, primary reflecting the increase in proportion of transactions with longer
credit period (about 30 to 60 days from transaction date) by the end of 2018 due to

deepening cooperation with major PRC banks for their promotion activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade receivables turnover days (calculated by the average of the beginning and ending
balances of trade receivables of the year, divided by the gross transactions value with
mobile users for the year and multiplied by 365 days) for the year ended 31 December
2018 was 3 days (for the year ended 31 December 2017: 2 days). The Company will
continue to monitor the credit risk by ongoing review the settlement of customers, and
evaluate the credit limits annually accordingly to the track record and financial position of

the counterparties.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio (calculated by dividing bank borrowings by
total equity as at the end of the year) of the Group decreased to approximately 0.22 from
approximately 0.6 as at 31 December 2017, primarily attributable to the decrease in

bank borrowings of the Group.

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMBO.I million, as compared with approximately RMB2.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The above expenditure was mainly related to the

purchase of computers and office equipment.

Significant Investment

As at 3| December 2018, the Group did not have any significant investment.

Capital Commitments and Operating Lease Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material capital commitments.
As at 3| December 2018, the Group's operating lease commitments amounted to
approximately RMB8.6 million, as compared with approximately RMB10.9 million as at 31
December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENRR DN

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's reporting currency is in Renminbi to which the Group’s material transactions
are denominated. The net proceed from global offering are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, which exposed the Group to market risk arising from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rate. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy,
however, the management of the Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure closely

and consider the usage of hedging instruments when the need arises.

Charges on Assets

As at 3| December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any asset charges.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities, guarantees or any litigation.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS
There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 3|1 December

2018.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
During the year ended 3| December 2018, there was no material acquisition or disposal

of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 3| December 2018, the Group had 93 (31 December 2017: 156) full-time
employees. Total staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration) was approximately
RMB23.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018, as compared with approximately
RMB25.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. All employees have joined
the state-managed retirement benefits schemes or Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
in Hong Kong, which are classified as defined contribution plans. The Group believes
that employees are one of its most important assets and the Group strives to offer
a competitive remuneration to its employees. The Group has been recruiting and
promoting individuals based on merit and their development potentials. Remuneration
package offered to all employees including Directors is determined with reference to their
performance, qualifications, experience and the prevailing salary levels in the market. The
Group has been providing training opportunities for its employees in order to enhance

their qualifications and equip them with necessary skills.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBERREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Junmou (B &), aged 52, is our chairman and has been an executive
Director of the Company since 8 June 2014. He is a founder of the Group and has
served as a director and chairman of the board of Shenzhen NINK since its incorporation.
He is responsible for overseeing our Group's overall strategic planning and management.
Mr. Huang has over |3 years of experience in information technology related industries,
including over || years of experience in the mobile top-up service industry. Prior to
founding Shenzhen NNK he was the general manager of Shenzhen Motivity Telecom
Co, Ltd. (RINTRE) N EFMBRAF]), a company primarily engaging in the provision
of information technology outsourcing services from June 2004 to May 2006, where he
was responsible for business development. Mr. Huang was a shareholder and a director
of Shenzhen Honglingyu Industrial Limited Company from May 2001 to May 2004,
where he was responsible for strategic planning and management of the company. Prior
to that, Mr. Huang was a shareholder and worked as a supervisor for Shenzhen Difulan
Industrial Limited Company from May 1998 to May 2001, where he was responsible for
administrative and financial management. Mr. Huang was an employee of the Shenzhen
Post Office (FYIITHESE /F) from September 1988 to August 1992, and an employee of
Shenzhen Telecommunications Development Company (R EEEEAF]) from
November 1992 to November 1995. Prior to that, Mr. Huang worked for Shenzhen
Fengsheng International Textile and Fashion Company (- YII'2 BX BIFR AR BIR A
A)) from October 1986 to October 1988.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yang Hua (%%), aged 47, has been an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company since 18 June 2014. Mr. Yang is responsible for our Group's
overall management, operations and business development. He is a founder of our Group
and has served as a director and general manager of Shenzhen NNK since December
2010. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yang was the general manager of Shenzhen Long
Feng Hua Industrial Co, Ltd. (RINEEEE X BN R]), a company engaged in the
provision of software engineering services from June 2000 to May 2006. He served as the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Shuaihua Electronics Co., Ltd. (FIITTRPEE

BBR7AF]), a company engaged in the provision of software engineering and information
technology services, where he was responsible for business development and research

and development from August 1998 to May 2000.

Mr. Yang received a bachelor's degree in semiconductor devices and physics from Xi'an

Jiaotong University (FAR3EAZ) in July 1994,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xiangcheng (ZEZH), aged 50, has been a non-executive Director of the
Company since 18 June 2014. He is responsible for providing oversight over our Group's
administrative matters and business strategies. He has also been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhen NNK from June 2006 to January 2011 and a director since then.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li was the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Shuaihua
Electronics Co., Ltd. (RYITBNEE F AR E]), a company primarily engaged in the
provision of software engineering and information technology services, from October
1998 to May 2006, where he was responsible for the company's day-to-day operations

and research and development.

Mr. Li received his bachelor's degree in applied mathematics and computer application
from the University of Electronic Science and Technology of China (B FEHEAEZ) in
July 1991,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBERREFE

Mr. Xu Xinhua (FF#TZ), aged 71, has been a non-executive Director of the Company
since 18 June 2014. He is responsible for supervising our Group’s administrative matters
and business strategies. Mr. Xu joined our Group in June 2009 and has served as the
supervisor of Shenzhen NNK since January 201 1. Prior to joining our Group, he was a
senior engineer of the Shenzhen Telecommunications Bureau (RYITTEIER) from
January 2001 to March 2008 where he was responsible for administrative and human
resources management and a senior engineer at the Guangdong Provincial Posts and
Telecommunications Company (BRE{SAA]) from September 1999 to January
2001, where he was responsible for corporate planning and development and asset
management. From May 1975 to September 1999, Mr. Xu worked at the Shantou District
Posts and Telecommunications Company (ILSEE {52 Al), starting as a technician and
gradually being promoted to an engineer, and was responsible for corporate development,

project management and operations management.

Mr. Yu Zida (% F3£), aged 54, has been a non-executive Director of the Company since
18 June 2014. He is responsible for overseeing the strategic development of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yu has served as the president of Shenzhen Sinomaster
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (RIITI18/NEIRE KB AR 2 F]) since September 2013.
He has served as director of T&S Communications Co,, Ltd. (RYII KR K BERHER
A R]) since March 2014, a company Listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code:
300570). Since 20 March 2015, he has been served as a director of Shenzhen Aisidi Co.,
Ltd. ORI B HEEA (D BBR A A]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 002416). Since April 2016, he has been served as a director of Shanghai
Kuwu Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (/BB R HEEEERNHBRAF), a
company listed on New OTC Market.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yu was a deputy director of the end user committee of the China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (Bl & 1851 E Bl RAI L B & &L

FAFZ&g) from November 2007 to August 2013. He was recognized as a National
Young and Middle-aged Expert with Outstanding Contributions (7 BIff 5 & 22 i Rk
ER) by the State Council of the PRC in 1999 for his contribution to engineering services.
Mr. Yu was awarded a certificate for High-Level Professional in Shenzhen in November
2013 for a term of five years, where he was recognized as a national-level talent by the
Human Resources and Social Security Administration of Shenzhen Municipality (3|
MANERMEERESD). He served as an assistant vice president and Head of the
Headquarter Research and Development Promotion Department (T35 #E#E 25 25) of the
Haier Group (/8fR&®)) started from February 2002. From October 2003, he served as
a vice president and the head of the information technology products department, from
April 2005 he served as a vice president and head of the company's strategy department,
from December 2009, he served as senior vice president and chief technology officer,
and from April 2010 to September 2013 he served as executive vice president and Chief
Technology Officer of the Haier Group. He also served as a director of Qingdao Haier
Co. ltd. (BE&BRRMHERA
(stock code: 600690), from June 2010 to April 2013.

7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange

Mr. Yu received a bachelor's degree in power engineering from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology (EEF RHAZR) (formerly known as Huazhong College of
Engineering (22 T27)) in July 1985. He further obtained a master's degree in power
engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (Z£f RHE A &)
(formerly known as Huazhong Polytechnic University (2R 2 T K22)) in July 1988.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBERREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Zhangxi (ME%), aged 67, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has over 23 years of experience in
the information systems industry. He has held multiple research and teaching positions,
including Deputy Director of FinTech Research Institute of Harbin Institute of Technology,
Shenzhen since February 2019, tenured professorship and the co-director of the Center
for Advanced Analytics and Business Intelligence of Texas Tech University from 2007
to May 2018, and Emeritus Professor of Texas Tech University since February 2019,
the dean of Yunshang Silk Road Big Data Industry Research Institute, Korla Economic &
Technological Development Zone (EERENEERMFAERE L4 2 BAHBE
ZETH7ERT) from August 2016 to January 2018 representing Xihua University (752 K E2)
at Sichuan, the director of the Sichuan Province Finance Intelligence and Engineering Key
labouratory (/I8 ERIBEEHEHTEEHERE) from May 2008 to December
2015, the director of Fujian Engineering School Next Generation Intemet Research Center
(RREIRSR TR EBBRMERMREREH L) from 2004 to 2010, adjunct
professor of the Fujian Engineering School since June 2004, a professor of Tongji University
(RIEARZ) since October 1995. He headed the provincial pilot of intemational payment
balance information management system, a program of the 7th Five-Year Programs for
Science and Technology Development of China of the National Development and Reform
Committee during 1988 to 1992. He was a deputy supervisor at the Fujian Province
Economic Information Centre (8328 &&= 8 ) from November 1987 to July
1992 and a senior engineer at the Fujian Provincial Planning Committee Computer Centre

(RREFTEIZBEEFFIEF L) from November 1983 to October 1987.

Mr. Lin received a master of engineering degree from Tsinghua University (B2EAZ) in
June 1982. He further received a master of science degree in economics in December
1996 and a doctor of philosophy degree in December 1999 from the University of Texas
at Austin. He is a member of several key industry organizations, including the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineer, the Institute for Operations Research and the

Management Sciences and Association for Information Systems.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Qian Haomin (882 %), aged 42, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has extensive experience in brand
strategy and operations and participated in the establishment of CSJ-SBI Financial Media
Co, Ltd, a joint venture between China Securities Journal and SBI Group in January 201 I.
He currently serves as a director, general manager of CSJ-SBI Financial Media Co., Ltd. He
joined China Securities Journal (F BI#& %) in June 2001 and had held various positions
including reporter, director of the career development department and assistant to the
chief editor and assistant to the journal president. Prior to joining China Securities Journal,
he worked as an assistant researcher at the International Information Research Agency of
DEIFRE BAFFCAT) from August 1998

to June 2001. He was a member of the drafting committee of the “Interpretation of

the National Information Centre (1% 15 &

Securities Law" of The National People’s Congress Securities Law Amendment Drafting
Group (RBIARBHZEHERENME (BHEBR) HEHEA) and the drafting
committee of the 2005 and 2006 editions of “China Trust Company Operation Report”
by China Renmin University Trust Fund Research Institute (FF B A R AZ2({F5THHE
ERRA2005 82006 FE (REEFRARKEERE) HZ ). In addition, Mr.
Qian is the chairman of China Securities Jinniu (Beijing) Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.
(FE2F GLR) REZEABMR AT, a company he joined in March 2012 and he is
the director and General Manager of (/8% &M &5 25 ABMRAR]). Mr. Qian is
qualified as a fund practitioner of the Asset Management Association of China ({78 %
HEESEME), and he was recruited in July 2017 as the researcher at the Institute of
Finance and Accounting in Wuhan University (/2 K 2281 75 ER & 5 HFF FTFN).

Mr. Qian received a bachelor's degree in economics from Peking University (At UK 22) in
July 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBERREFE

Ms. Zhao Jinlin (&), aged 50, was appointed to our Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 November 2014. She is a professor in the School of Economics
of Shenzhen University, which she joined in June 2006. Ms. Zhao is a committee member
of China International Taxation Research Institute. She was an independent non-executive
EREEK (FE) B
PR A R]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0312).

director of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (j%,

until April 2019, an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Infinova Technology
Co., Ltd. (RYIERARERHBR A
Exchange (stock code: 002528), until February 2019, and an independent non-execuyive
director of Shenzhen Esun Display Co., Ltd (FYITT 2 HERER A
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002751), until March 2019.

al), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock

A]), a company

Ms. Zhao received a bachelor’s degree in welding from the Xi' an Jiaotong University (75
LZRIBAE) in July 1989, a master's degree in accounting from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (PRI B AEAER) in June 1995 and a doctor of philosophy
degree in accounting from Jinan University (ZEIAE2) in January 2005.

Save as disclosed above,

() the Directors did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies of
which the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas
in the last three years prior to the date of this report and does not hold any other

positions with the Company or other members of the Group; and

(2)  the Directors do not have other relationship with any other Directors, senior

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAEEEREFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT AREER

Mr. Wong Wai Tung (EMR), aged 38, is the Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company IHRREE 38FH - ARRIEEVEERYE
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong has over 16 years of experience in accounting, RAME - TRERBRERTREERR 16FH
auditing and financial management in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Wong is responsible e ERLUEEELR  TE4BEARE
for the financial management and company secretarial matters of the Group. B BERRARMWESH -

Mr. Wong graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor degree TAER-_ZE_F+—RERABRTRER
in accounting in November 2002. Mr. Wong is currently a member of the Hong Kong BexB18M  FTAEHATAEQHMA
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of e NERBT A AReHMAEEEEE -

Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
PESLHE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

[t is the belief of the Board that good corporate governance plays a vital part in
maintaining the success of the Company. The Company is committed to achieve and
maintain high standards of corporate governance practices to ensure greater corporate
performance accountability and transparency, and safeguard the interests of shareholders

of the Company (the “Shareholders").

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules"). The Board will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practice of the Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code

and align with the latest developments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding Director's securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
to all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 3| December 2018.

THE BOARD

Corporate strategy

The strategy of the Group is to deliver sustainable returns with solid financial
fundamentals, so as to enhance total long-term return for Shareholders. Please refer to
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
for discussions and analyses of the performance of the Group, how the Group generates
and preserves value over the longer term and how the Group will execute its strategy for

delivering the business objectives of the Group.

26 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

EZEMAZRARABE_T-N\F+_A
=+ -BIEFENMRER]RE
m%‘”““’““;ﬁ

EZQHGE RENGCERERTDERRAIXY

MEBTE - ARABNERI AR SREN
CEERABRESEXRBRMAULES
K YREARBBR(TRR AN -

HE_Z-\F+ A=t HLFEARF
EETHRAMES LMRRA(T ETRR )
THmEEEERTA(ERERT )P

ETERMEER

ARZEEARRACEERER  NERTAE
ATRRARHMEREE -

f

&

7 *

SilEy st RIS (T F IR )
BEEAA

E

ERETRERS

ARECIRA L HH RIS+ P L a7 A
ESETEFZHORETR(RETA )
REFETEFRGNETER - EA2EE
FETRAIEAMEBRESPERAKEFER
HE_Z-\Ft_A=t-HLFEETH
ETHIFMERERE -

Exg
piaE 3
AEENKBRABROMEERFETRHE
W@ﬁ*%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁhﬁm‘@ﬁ°ﬁ@ﬂ

DMARERNRR - AEBIN4E R IR
ﬁ?ELF@ DA B 7K £ [B 40 fe] 17 L SR B A
ERAEENEEER  F2HTRHREIR
[EREwmED IR -



Corporate Governance Report

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including two executive Directors, three

non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board for the year ended 3| December 2018 and up to the date

of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangcheng

Mr. XU Xinhua

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the board members
and the senior management are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 25 of this annual report. Details
regarding the term of appointment of the non-executive Directors are set out in the
section headed "Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment” on page 72 in

this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provisions A2.| of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of a listed company should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. In accordance with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") are
separately performed by Mr. Huang Junmou and Mr. Yang Hua, and the division of their
responsibilities is clearly established and set out in writing in order to ensure a clear

distinction between the responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO.

Mr. Huang Junmou is the Chairman of the Board and primarily responsible for providing
leadership to the Board and overseeing the Group's overall strategic planning and
management. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practices. With
the support of the company secretaries of the Company, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner. The Chairman encourages all Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors to actively participate in all board and committee meetings. Mr. Huang
is a founder of the Group and has over |3 years of experience in information technology
related industries, including over || years of experience in the mobile top-up service

industry.

Mr. Yang Hua is the CEO of the Company and responsible for Group's day-to-day
management, operations and business development. The CEO focuses on implementing
objectives, polices and strategies approved by the Board. Mr. Yang is a founder of the
Group and has over |3 years of experiences in internet industry, including over || years

of experiences in the mobile top-up service industry.
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Board at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines as set out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. The Board has
delegated to the CEO, and through him, to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the
Board has established board committees (the “Board Committees”) and has delegated
to these Board Committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference. Further details of these committees are set out in section headed “Board

Committees” in this annual report.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated to the management.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and

professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have access to all the information of the Company as well as the services
and advice of the company secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders

at all times.

The CG Code requires directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer. Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the

Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors' liabilities in

respect of legal actions against its Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 7 January 2016 which set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional qualification,
skills, knowledge and industry and length of service. The Company aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the
Company's business growth. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made

upon the merits and the contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) will review
the board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend

any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises of 8 Directors, covering different
genders and has a broad age distribution and a diverse mix of background, knowledge and
skills. The Nomination Committee considers that, appropriate balance has been stricken

among the Board members in terms of skills, experience and perspectives.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally made available
to Directors in advance. The Board meets at least four times per year at approximately
quarterly intervals in accordance with Code Provision A.l.1 of the CG Code. Notice
of not less than |4 days would be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend pursuant to Code Provision A.1.3 of the CG

Code and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other board and committee meetings, reasonable notice would be given. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors
at least three days before each board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. All
Directors can access to the senior management and the joint company secretaries of the
Company at all time and upon reasonable request seek independent professional advice

at the Company's expense.

Minutes of the meetings are kept properly with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and record. Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concems raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which meeting is held. The minutes of the

board meetings are available for inspection by Directors.

The articles of association of the Company (“Articles”) contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a maternial

interest.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS EERZEEREHELH
The attendance record of each Director at the Board, Board Committees meetings and REE-_E-—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFEAR
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set RAREENFEZE EEZECCRRRE

out in the table below: REMDHIR T
Attendance/Number of Meetings
e/ EENH
Annual

Board Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit General
Name of Director Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEps EZeed REZET HFMZEE  BENZEET RREFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. HUANG Junmou BERLE 4/4 Il I NATER I/l
Mr. YANG Hua BERE 44 NATER  NATER  NATER I/
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. LI Xiangcheng FEREE 44 NAMER  NATER  NATER I/
Mr. XU Xinhua AETERAE 44 NANER  NATER  NATER I/
Mr. YU Zida i FE k4 44 NATER  NATER  NATER ol
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. QIAN Haomin BRREL 4/4 I NATER 0 1/
Mr. LIN Zhangxi WEH K E 44 NIATER I/l 0N I/l
Ms. ZHAO Jinlin HEH L 4/4 I 1/l n I

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not hold any other general BRERFASI  ARBAREBEE-_Z—N\F
meeting during the year ended 3| December 2018, TZA=T-BLEFERERTEMEMBKRE

Code provision A2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman should at least — PEEATFRIHSFAIKIALIRTE  THER

ERTESHREOBATEENTES(OES
executive directors) without the executive directors present. For the year ended 3| VFRTES)ROBFRITAEH - HEZ
December 2018, the Chairman met with the non-executive Directors and independent E-NE+-_A=t—HIFE THFEEH
non-executive Directors without other executive Directors present to understand their M TESESNER TEIERNTESRIEY

annually hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including independent non- 57

concerns and to discuss pertinent issues. FRTEFSE  THREABIZERIRIBMH
fElE °
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as Directors of the Company and of the conduct,

business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visits to the Company's offices and meetings with senior

management of the Company.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of CG Code, Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics
will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company's expenses. According to the records of the
Company, in 2018, all Directors attended training sessions on duties and obligations
of directors of companies listed on the Stock Exchange which was conducted by the

Company's legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the key methods of attaining continuous BEZ-\F+_A=1+—HLFE JE

professional development by each of the Directors are summarised as follows: ERGREZXERMNIEZNAMANT
Attending Reading

courses/ regulatory
seminars materials

Name of Directors HERE/ HEEE

EEp I REER

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. HUANG Junmou BEREE V \

Mr. YANG Hua BELE V v

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. LI Xiangcheng PEREE \ \

Mr. XU Xinhua APTESRE V

Mr. YU Zida W ER A V V

Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. QIAN Haomin BER%4 V \

Mr. LIN Zhangxi WEH KL \ \

Ms. ZHAO Jinlin BEMLL \ \
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A4.l of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A4.2 of
the CG Code states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
and is appointed for a specific term of three years unless terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract/signed an appointment letter with the Company and is

appointed for a specific term of three years.

All appointments of Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles. In accordance with the Articles, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that

meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
laid down in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of

Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the Stock

Exchange’s website and Company's website.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control system of the Group,
oversee the audit process and select external auditors and assess their independence and

qualifications.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Zhao Jinlin, Mr. Lin Zhangxi and Mr. Qian Haomin. Ms. Zhao Jinlin is the chairlady of the
Audit Committee and she is the Company's independent non-executive Director with the

appropriate professional qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018 to
review the annual financial results and report in respect of the year ended 3| December
2017 and interim financial results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2018 as
well as significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, and the effectiveness of the Company's internal

audit function.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to
the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among other things, to establish, review and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; and to establish transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her

associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
being Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Lin Zhangxi and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Lin Zhangxi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 23 March 2018 review the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy

and remuneration structure of the Company.

The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain, provide incentive and reflect their individual performance by
a reasonable remuneration package. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the share option scheme (the
“Scheme") and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors mainly includes the director’s fee which is a matter
for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and responsibilities of the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors and their participation in

the Scheme.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the role and responsibilities
delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are, among other things, to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of Directors and evaluate the structure and composition
of the Board. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination Committee makes reference
to criteria including reputation of candidate for integrity, accomplishment, experience,

professional and educational backgrounds.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, being
Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Qian Haomin and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Huang Junmou is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 23 March 2018 to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors to determine their eligibility and discussed the re-appointment of

directors and succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a nomination policy in March 2019. This policy aims to set out the
approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of

the Company's business.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s) for
directorships to the Board by giving due consideration to criteria including but not limited

to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(@)  Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational

background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time and

relevant interest;

() Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries

the Company's business is involved in;
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Nomination Committee (Continued)
(d)  Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent non-executive Director;
()  Reputation for integrity;

(fy  Potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board; and

(g)  Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend retiring Director(s) to the
Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration to the criteria including but not

limited to:

(@)  The overall contribution and service of the retiring Director(s) to the Company,
including but not limited to the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or
its committees and general meetings where applicable, in addition to the level of

participation and performance on the Board and/or its committees; and

(b)  whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the Criteria.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:

*  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

®  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

®*  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

®  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and

Directors; and

*  to review the Company's compliance with CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report in the annual report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a

timely manner.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so..

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in the Independent

Auditors’ Report on pages 102 to 108 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal control system
of the Group and review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. A defined
management structure with specified limits of authority and responsibilities is developed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for

publications, and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company's risks are identified from operations in its established enterprise-wide
risk assessment methodologies. The Company periodically reviews each position of the
operating departments and other functional departments to identify, analyse and evaluate
the risks. The risk assessment results and the proposed internal control measures are
submitted to the directors and senior management of the Company for review and
approval. The directors and senior management are also responsible for supervising the

effectiveness of implementation and future execution of the risk control measurement.

TERERRS

EERMBRRNER

ESHARFRARRARABE_T-N\F
TZAZT - BLEFEORBEHRE - EFHE
RREEBRRTEE R ERIER T

RESERRBEHRRE  EFRATEAEE
MFFEEEE  REER)FELZHE
SRMERAFELEEESRIE  KIES
REAEEBRAF LR SRR 2L EE
tREMEE -

AREEUZEEARERE S MIBERRAOE

BECERAENAEREINEIBERE L
AR o

WME&WW&F
REE-_E-\F+_A=+—HILFER "

é%@*ﬁ?ﬁ*lﬂﬂa@&W%?%%m

MBMY - BREAKE S XA HERBE
BRrRM BIBENER HIRELE
EZCRRERAKENRRERE R AR

o URAEKN - ZFRREEEEMIE
HRAREEXEHEENAR  MARERT
SHEANRERAKERELAEMIFEY
HER:E - ARREHIE AN M ERRBLE
BRLEENARRY  LERRARERAK
RERE REXENGTTHEARBASENR
BEMEABERITE R LETERE
& RRIRER -

ARREARELENBEBRRN G AER
BRRTEAER - ARATHBRERL LS
W&ﬁ@%%%ﬁ%#ﬂ*u%%* D KA
fEER - BUBRAF &R K230 R RMEHIHE i
@hx%$ﬂﬂ§$&ﬁﬁa@@%§&m
E-BERSRERETAEEEHTNAR
BITRBERIERN AR -

FFEREEFRAR 41
2018 F 7R



Corporate Governance Report
== M \A $& H

The Company has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk management and
internal control systems. The results of the internal audit and review are reported to
the executive Directors and the Audit Committee. The Group has engaged Zhonghui
Anda Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) to conduct a review on the effectiveness
of the major cycles of the Group's internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2018. Such review covered material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and it did not reveal any significant defects. Zhonghui Anda
has reported major findings and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's internal audit function and is satisfied with its
adequacy and effectiveness for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Audit Committee
also reported the risk management assessment conducted by Zhonghui Anda to the

Board in the Board meeting held on 28 March 2019.

Relevant recommendations made by Zhonghui Anda have been properly followed up by

the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems, and considered
the risk management and intemal control systems are effective and adequate in all material

aspects in both design and operations.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to

approximately RMBI.6 million and RMBO.6 million respectively.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Wai Tung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling are the joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Wong Wai Ling is a vice president of a corporate services provider, SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, and assists Mr. Wong Wai Tung in
company secretarial affairs. The primary corporate contact person of Ms. Wong Wai Ling

at the Company is Mr. Wong Wai Tung.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Wong Wai Tung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling
have undertaken not less than |5 hours of relevant professional training respectively in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating policies
on remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out

in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

The senior management's (including all executive Directors) remuneration for the year

ended 31 December 2018 is within the following bands:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company and the Board believe that effective communication with Shareholders
and other investment community is essential for enhancing investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies, improving the level of corporate governance
transparency and strategic credibility. The Company's objectives on investor relations
are to maintain strong contacts with investors, to provide them with accurate and timely
information and to listen to Shareholders' suggestions and concerns, and answer raised

questions sincerely.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings. The chairman
of the Board, non-executive Director, independent non-executive Directors, and the
chairmen and the chairlady of all Board Committees (or their delegates) will make

themselves available at general meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The 2019 annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company will be held on Thursday, 6
June 2019.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.nnk.com.
hk, where up-to-date information and updates on the Company'’s business operations and
development, financial information, corporate governance practices and other information

are available for public access.
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The Company and the Board value the views and the inputs of Shareholders and
investors. The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and Shareholders in
relation to the development of the Company to the Company's investor relations team

via email or telephone.
DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy, which aims to set out the
principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration,
payment or distribution of its profits, as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.
According to the dividend policy, the Board shall take into account the following factors of

the Group when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:
®  operation requirements;

®  eamings;

* financial condition;

®  capital requirements; and

®  any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at
Shareholder's meeting on each substantial issue at general meetings, including the election

of individual Directors.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles, general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more Shareholders deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at 40th Floor, Sunlight Tower, No. 248 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event that the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong,
or in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expensed incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the

Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles, no person shall, unless recommended by the
Board, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless
during the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there has been given to the
company secretary notice in writing by a member of the Company (not being the person
to be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given,
of his intention to propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed by

the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or Cayman Islands Companies Law for
Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meeting. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph headed “Procedures for

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company's
Hong Kong share registrar, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board could send their enquiries to the Company's headquarters and principal
place of business in the PRC at 5/F, Building F5, TCL International E City, No. 100
Zhongshan Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An amended and restated memorandum of association and Articles of the Company was
adopted on 14 December 2015 and took effect from 7 January 2016 (the “Listing Date”).
The Company has not made any changes to its constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2018. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the

Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control measures, the
Company understands its duties under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), and adheres to the important principle of timely publication of
the inside information. The Company abides by the “Guide on disclosure of inside
information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission, and has developed
a complete system of internal procedures and internal control measures for processing
and publication of information in order to ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate

disclosure of relevant information to the public and regulatory authorities.

The Company has established an inside information handling team which consists
executive Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and investor relations
to identify, evaluate and report to the Board about any potential inside information. The
Company is required to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable
in accordance with SFO and Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company also included in its information disclosure polices a
strict prohibition on the unauthorized use of confidential or inside information. The Board
will determine further escalation and appropriate handling the dissemination of inside

information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVENANCE PRACTICES

The Board is pleased to present this environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Reporting Guide provided in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
(the “ESG Guide"), which sets out the Company's policies and practices in four aspects,
namely environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community involvement. The ESG Report is designed to allow Shareholders, investors
(including potential investors) and the public to have a more comprehensive and profound

understanding of the corporate governance and culture of the Company.

The Group is committed to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable
development. The Group strives to utilize resources efficiently and effectively in workplace
and reduce impacts on the environment; raise its social responsibility and improve well-
being of its employees; and demonstrate the Group's commitment to the corporate
social responsibility. Apart from pursuing corporate profits, the Group also took into
consideration the sustainable development of the environment, the society and corporate
governance in all aspects of the business operation of the Group, so that those standards

could be sustained.

The Board is responsible for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has
established an ESG working team to engage the management and employees across all
functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality to the
Group's business as well as the Company's stakeholder, through reviewing the Group's
operations and internal discussions. Disclosures relating to the material ESG issues
identified have been included in this ESG Report pursuant to the ESG Guide. This ESG
Report focuses on mobile top-up services business, the principal business of the Group. It

covers the operations of the Group's PRC Operating Entity, Shenzhen NNK.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group maintains communication with various stakeholders which refer to groups
and individuals that materially influencing or affected by the Group's business. Through
various channels, the Group can timely access the latest request of the stakeholders
and proactively respond to their requests in order to foster the Group's capability in
fulfilling its environmental and social responsibilities and achieving the Group's sustainable

development objectives.
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ma 3 PRIIN
RIE  HERERWMSE
Stakeholders FEMEEE Communications and Responses BEHEZE
®  Employees e [EB Induction training N At
Regular staff training and activity EHE T RE®
Communication meeting BAEE
Employee feedback mechanism & 8 [ ER 14
*  Govemment and o HNREZEHF  Direct communication BERER
Regulatory Authorities Relevant conference HEeH
Field visit ERE
Compliance management ARER
Policy compliance BEER
*  Media o E® Group announcement and notice SEAERAE
Interview R
Group websites and WeChat SEALK
public account N
e Community o HE Volunteer activity EREED
Donation to community HREE
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The business of the Group affects different stakeholders, and these stakeholders have

various expectations of the Group. To enhance the materiality analysis, the Group will

continue to expand the scope of stakeholders' engagement and collect a diverse range of

stakeholders' views through various activities in the future.

Al

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group understands that its daily operations could have impacts on the
environment, therefore the Group looks for ways to achieve environmental
sustainability while continuing its business growth. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to its employees. To put into
practice, the Group have implemented a series of environmental-friendly measures
in the workplace to minimize its environmental impacts. The Group seizes every
opportunity to engage its staff in supporting green initiatives in daily operations to
call for collective effort in sustaining the environment. To this end, the Group has
introduced several initiatives to improve energy efficiency, minimize greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions and enhance indoor air quality. For the year ended 3|
December 2018, the Group has complied with all relevant environmental laws and

regulations.

Emissions

As a specialized online mobile top-up service provider in the PRC, the Company's
operations do not involve in production-related air, water and land pollution that
are regulated by applicable laws and regulations in the PRC. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Company did not produce hazardous waste or harmful
pollutants in the course of its business. The Company has always been actively
seeking various environmental protection measures to reduce the indirect impact

of business development on the environment.
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The carbon emissions resulting from the daily operations of the Group mainly

come from the greenhouse GHG emissions generated from electricity use.

The Group also realized that transportation by any means can result in GHG
emissions. As the Group has extensive and numerous channel partners in
different regions in the PRC, travelling on business trip is also one of the major
contributions to GHG emissions. As at 3| December 2018, due to unavoidable
commercial activities, the total emissions of GHG of the Group was 27,204.1 Kg,
representing a increase of 4,298.2Kg of GHG emissions as compared with 22,905.9
Kg as of 31 December 2017. Such an increase was mainly due to the intensified
business corporation between different channel partners and suppliers. The Group
encourages its employees to adopt video conferencing and teleconferencing to
conduct meeting with channel partners and suppliers and in-house meetings with
officers based in other regions to avoid unnecessary travelling and thus minimize
GHG emissions. In addition, the Group also encourages staff to take public
transportation in order to reduce GHG emissions. The Group has also adopted
measures such as maintaining Company's vehicles and tires status on regular
basis, and switching off idle engines during long time waiting to reduce energy

consumption in order to reduce GHG emissions.

Use of Resources

With the vision of protecting the planet and incorporating environmental
sustainability into its business function and processes, the Group proactively seeks
opportunities to enhance operating efficiency in workplace to reduce the use
of resources. The Group closely monitors the utilization of resources and takes

remedial actions whenever necessary.

Staff are well informed of Group's green measures through different communication
channels, such as intranet and regular meetings. The Group continuously cultivates

its staff awareness and encourages their behavioral change.
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As disclosed above, several measures have been implemented to improve energy
saving in the Group's workplace. The followings are examples of energy saving

measures adopted by the Group:
= maximizing the use of natural light and energy-saving systems;
= zoning for optimal control of lighting and air-conditioning;

= using energy-saving light bulbs, installing and purchasing energy-efficient office

equipment;
= maintaining the room temperature at an average of 26 T;

= maintaining air conditioning systems and cleaning the filters of air conditioners

on a regular basis;

- switching off air conditioning systems and lighting in vacant working areas

after operation hours;
= turning off office equipment when not in use;
= switching off water dispenser after operation hours; and

= putting reminder message about the importance of energy and resources

savings on or next to office equipment;

While complying with environmental laws and regulations, the Company strongly
encourages all employees to focus on energy conservation and emission reduction
in their work and reduce GHG emissions and promote indoor air quality. As at 31
December 2018, the Group used a total of 285,127kWh of electricity, a decrease
of 143,617KWh of electricity as compared with 428,744 kWh as at 3|1 December
2017.
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The Group does not involve any production and manufacturing processes,
however, the Group still persists on raising staff awareness of water conservation
and regularly checking office pipes to prevent leakage. The Group encourages
employees to save water. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
used a total of | 318 tonnes of water, a decrease of 928 tonnes of water from as
compared with 2,246 tonnes of water used as of 3| December 2017. The water
consumption density decreased by 1.59% from 14.40 tonnes/person in the year
of 2017 to 14.17 tonnes/person in the year of 2018. The Group will continue to
encourage its employees to actively participate in the activities of saving water

resources within the Group and to do its best to protect water resources.

Due to the nature of business, the Group does not use any packaging material

during the course of its business.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

Waste management and reduction are crucial to conservation of the earth's finite
resources. In order to improve waste management mechanisms, the Group has
adopted various waste reduction measures, especially in cutting down paper
consumption in the course of operation and purchase of paper made scratch top-

up cards.

The Group encourages staff to view the documents on electronic devices instead
of printing out hard copies. When printing is unavoidable, duplex printing is
defaulted and staffs are encouraged to reuse the single-sided printed papers. The
designated collection points have been set up in the workplace to facilitate paper
and toner cartridges recycling. Staff are also advised to reuse office consumables.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group used a total of 68,000 pieces
of paper, a decrease of 52.5% as compared with 143,053 pieces of paper as of 3|
December 2017, a decrease of 75,053 pieces of paper. The Group will continue
to recommend green office and conserve resources. The Group will continue
to contribute to the sustainable development of mankind, while continuously

enhancing its business capabilities.
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Regarding to the Group's paper made top-up cards inventory, the Group has
chosen to purchase larger proportion of virtual top-up cards, supplemented by
a small amount of prepaid paper made top-up cards. For the year ended 3|
December 2018, the Group purchased a total of 4,765,173 pieces of paper made
top-up cards, a decrease of 49.9% as compared with 9,504,838 cards for the year
ended 3| December 2017, For the already-purchased paper made top-up cards,
the Group stipulates that once the prepaid card are used, they shall be sent to the
designated collection points for paper recycling so as to reduce the waste of paper

and increase the paper recycling rate.

The Group understands that good air and water quality are vital to health. The
Group cares about its staff and therefore makes every effort to provide a healthy
workplace environment for them. The Group has implemented various measures to
maintain good indoor air quality for staff, such as regular cleaning of air-conditioning
systems and filters of air conditioners. Professional cleaning personnel are engaged

to maintain the indoor environment of workplaces.

SOCIAL

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise
and regards human resources as its corporate wealth in maintaining its leading
position in the mobile top-up service industry. To empower our staff, the Group
continuously provides on-the-job trainings and development opportunities to
enhance employees’ career progression. The Group offers competitive employment
package and benefits to attract and retain competent persons. The Group also
cherishes employees' well-being and strives to provide them with a healthy and safe

working environment.
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Employment

Workforce

The Group keeps track of the updates of the laws and regulations in the PRC and
has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the labour Law of
the PRC (P AR ZEFBILEE) and the labour Contract Law of the PRC (F
EARENBELEERFE) for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Group
has entered into labour contracts with all employees to protect their legitimate
rights and interests. Recruitment is open for all qualified personnel and conducted
in a fair, just and open manner, and recruitment information is announced with the
Company's information or disclosed to the public. Recruitment and promotion
are based on the candidates’ capability instead of other factors such as gender,
race, age and religion. All employees and candidates enjoy equal opportunities and
fair treatment. The Group has established a selection and evaluation system to
optimize the allocation of human resources and intemal promotion. The philosophy
of developing a wide array of talents helps to build up the overall strength of the

Group and maintaining its leading position in the industry.

The Group has also established policies and procedures regarding the dismissal of
its employees. Compensation for dismissed personnel is well settled and the Group
has strictly abided by the provision of labour Law of the PRC (1 A R HE
&)%), The Group will conduct interviews and conversations with dismissed
personnel to comfort their frustrations and collect their feedbacks. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not received any complaint or involved

in any legal proceeding related to dismissal matters.

The comprehensive workforce is essential to optimize the Group's operation. As at
31 December 2018, the Group had 93 full time employees, an decrease of 40.4%
as compared to the 156 employees as at 31 December 2017. The female to male
ratio is approximately I:1. The Group's employees were allocated in departments
of research & development (29.0%), marketing sales and purchasing (14.0%),
customer services (22.6%), administration (7.5%) and others (26.9%). The Group
had a young and energetic workforce, with the majority 59.2% were aged below
30.
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Analysis of 2017 and 2018 annual employee turnover rate
The Group's employee tumover rate in 2018 was 54.0%, which was increased by
14.5% as compared to the turnover rate of 39.5% in 2017. The high turnover rate

mainly attributed to the intensified competition in the intemnet industry as well as

the restructuring in the first half of 2018.
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Benefits and Compensation

The Group endeavors to offer a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
package to attract, retain and motivate talent employees. Remuneration adjustments
are based on staffs' performance and their overall quality of work. Based on the
performance and the potential of employees as well as the macroeconomic
environment, the Group offers attractive fringe benefits, reasonable level of salary
increase and flexible individual holiday arrangements so as to ensure a balanced life

for its employees.

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group strictly abided by the provisions
of labour Law of the PRC (A RHFME % E))E) and the provisions of the
Company's staff handbook expressly specify the working hours and rest periods.
The Group adopts an eight-hour shift, five working days and the staff are also
entitled to statutory holiday. For the staff who cannot enjoy the statutory holiday
while on shift, the Group will provide overtime pay according to the relevant laws
and regulations. Apart from the usual annual leave and paid sick leave, the Group
also offers additional leave entitlements for other circumstances like marriage,
bereavement, maternity, paternity and work-related injury, etc, which allows the
staff to have flexible leave arrangement. The Group also grants certain amount of

mobile credit as birthday gifts for all employees.

Equal Opportunities

To ensure equal employment and advancement opportunities for all individuals,
the Group assesses individuals based on their experience, qualifications and abilities
when it comes to employment, remuneration and promotion. The Group's
employment practices will under no circumstances, be influenced or affected by a
candidate’s or employee's race, gender, age, disability or family status. The Group
offers equal working opportunities and discourages any kind of discrimination,

including discriminating on the basis of the personal characteristics of its employee.
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Health and Safety

The Group has committed to provide employees with a safe working environment
and pay tremendous attention to employees own health. The Group has strictly
abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the labour Law of the PRC
(PEARANERS
(TS IRBRIEA) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

J%) and the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment. The Group is required to comply with work safety laws and
regulations imposed by the government authorities in the PRC. The Group has
implemented various occupational health and safety procedures to maintain a
safe work environment, including (i) providing guidelines for operational and
safety control procedures to all employees; (i) adopting protective measures at
its facilities; (iii) inspecting facilities regularly to identify and eliminate safety hazard;
and (iv) providing trainings to employees on safety awareness. Inspections and
management review of health and safety policies have been performed to ensure

the effectiveness of the arrangements, training and guidelines.

In addition, the Group prioritizes the health and well-being of its employees.
In order to provide employees with sufficient medical care, in addition to the
medical insurance coverage required by laws, the Group has provided pension,
unemployment, occupational injury and maternity insurance for its employees in
compliance with applicable PRC laws and regulations. As the Group's business
expands, the Group will continue to regularly review and assess its risk portfolio
and adjust its insurance coverage based on its need and industry practice. The
Group has also provided annual medical check-ups for its employees and carried

out cultural and sports activities to promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group did not encounter any
major accident during the operation which brought death of employees, or made

any of them suffer a loss of work days because of injury on job.
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Development and Training

The Group believes nurturing talents is the cornerstone of the Group's business
development. The Group has committed to offer different training opportunities
to its staff, to provide them with a suitable platform for career advancement and
professional development. The Group holds regular trainings for new employees
in order to build cohesion amongst new joiners as well as provide in depth
understanding of the Company's philosophy and strategies. The Group also
encourages employees to share their specialty knowledge and experience with
other departments’ colleague in order to improve everyone's comprehensive
competence and horizon. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
arranged all the department to launch related training course within colleagues,
such as technical department courses, new employee orientation, work trainings
and some experience exchanging seminars. Directors and management attended
requested continuous professional training courses organized by Company's legal

advisor.

The Group offers a range of training topics to facilitate it staff's professional and
personal development including training on Company's business, strategy and
communication skills. The Group also developed programmes and competition to
motivate its staff to pursue continuous improvements. The Group sets up “Excellent
Employee Competition” twice every year in order to foster team cohesion and

cultivate a harmonious working environment.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and forced labour in the Group, and is
fully committed to create a work environment which respects human rights. Staff of
human resources department audit and verify staff identity during the recruitment

process to ensure that no child labour will be employed.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of rights and interests
for employees, strictly complies with the relevant provisions of national and local
employee rights and interests. The provisions of the Company's staff handbook
expressly specifies the working hours, rest and leave, labour protection and so on

to encourage work-life balance and prevent any compulsory labour.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group selects telecommunication operators, distributors of telecommunications
operators, e-commerce platform and third-party online game operators (collectively
“suppliers”), to support the business operations, and is committed as much as
possible to conduct the business with suppliers that act in a socially responsible
manner to meet the ethical expectations. As at 31 December 2018, the Company
had 220 suppliers (2017: 281). As a specialized mobile top-up service provider in
the PRC, the Group understands the importance to work closely with its supply
chain to ensure the sustainability of the Group's business. A supplier evaluation
system in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and after-sales service has been
established by the Group. The Group carries out long-term quality monitoring
and conducts regular reviews on all suppliers as well as random examination on
different suppliers to ensure sustainable quality material supplies and services.
The Group will also take into account suppliers’ reputation, their track record of
high corporate standards, expertise, capacity and etc. so as to select the qualified
suppliers and appropriate management's approval is required before entering an
agreement. Such procedures aim to support operational efficiency and segregation

of duties.

Product Responsibilities

On the basis of strictly abiding by the relevant laws and regulations, the Group has
taken a variety measures to ensure the quality of service. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group was not aware of any violation of the laws and
regulations on its services (including advertising, labelling, service quality, customer
privacy protection and consumer right etc.) and any event that had material impact

on the Group.
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The Group primarily engages in providing mobile top-up services and data usage
top-up services. The Group has developed a reliable, secure and scalable platform,
007ka top-up platform, through which the Group processes mobile top-up request
received from mobile users. The Group has committed to deliver high-quality top-
up services through its 007ka top-up platform and WeChat public account to the
customers. In order to ensure delivery of high-quality top-up services, the Group
has in place a real-time automatic mechanism to monitor irregularities of top-
up results such that administrator can deal with such irregularities proactively and
enable customers to enjoy fast, reliable and convenient top-up services. The Group
provides customer services on a 24/7 basis to enhance service quality, in particular,
to PRC banks, the Group has also established a 24-hour real-time monitoring
mechanism which reports irregularities in the systems to relevant personnel so
that irregularities can be dealt proactively. The above monitoring systems allow the
Group to quickly respond to and resolve network malfunction issues to ensure the
stability and security of the network and the mobile top-up services. In addition, the
Group has also maintained a dedicated customer service team to exclusively handle

enquiries or complaints from different channel partners’ customers.
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The customer service team comprising 2| personnel and the customer hotline
numbers are posted on the websites of the channel partners and the Company's
websites. Users who use the mobile top-up services through the channel partners
can make enquiries or complaints through the customer hotlines of the Company.
The Group defines complaints as customers’ explicit or implicit expressions of
dissatisfaction with the mobile top-up or data top-up services, which requires the
actions to resolve the problem and the response to the customers about the
solution. During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group received 185
complaints from customers, decreased by 22.3% as compared with 238 complaints
for the year ended 3| December 2017. These customer's complaints are generally
associated with delays in the top-up process, unsuccessful recharges and failure
of users to receive mobile top-up results. Upon receipt of complaints from
customers, the customer service team makes preliminary judgment on the nature
of the complaints and provides instruction to guide customers to solve problems.
Unresolved complaints relating to urgent or material issues are escalated to the
relevant managers on-duty. The Group also closely monitors the feedbacks from
customers. Through collecting and analyzing customer feedbacks, the high-quality
customer service team helps to enhance customer satisfaction and loyalty. For
cases of unsuccessful mobile top-up requests, recharge of the mobile accounts for
customers or refund of payments for the mobile top-up services to customers per

their requests are usually adopted.

The Group emphasizes the importance of protecting the privacy of its channel
partners and customers, and has complied with relevant laws and regulations
during the collection, processing and use of customer’s personal data. Employees
have signed the non-disclosure agreement to ensure the protection of customer's
personal data. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
receive complaints from channel partners or customers due to unauthorized

disclosure of information.
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Since the Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to
mobile users through electronic banking systems of PRC banks, offline channels and
other channels including third-party online platforms, its own websites and WeChat
public account, no massive advertising campaigns were launched by the Group. In
addition, due to the nature of the Group's business, labelling of products was not

applicable to the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Company has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the
Criminal Law of the PRC (FZE AR XEFBIFZ), the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the PRC (FEARKEMBER T EEHEFE) and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of PRC (2 AR HEFEIREEIE) for the year ended 3|
December 2018. The Group is committed to prevent and monitor any malpractice
or unethical actions. The Group maintains and effectively implements whistle-
blowing procedures for anti-corruption and anti-fraud and is committed to promote
integrity and prevent unethical issues. The Group encourages the reporting of

suspected business irregularities and provides clear channels specifically for this

purpose.

The Group requests its staff to maintain a high level of business ethics to protect
the interests and business operations of the Group. To reinforce staff's integrity, the
Group has established the code of conduct and laid down procedures in the staff
handbook to fight against corruption, bribery, extortion and fraud. The Group has
established regulations and procedures to prevent and monitor money laundering in
the operations. All new joiners are well briefed of these regulations and procedures
during orientation and existing members can assess relevant information in the
Group's intranet to raise their awareness on anti-corruption, anti-fraud and anti-

money laundering.

When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of duty, abuse
of power, receiving bribes, staff can report to the secretariat of the Board for
investigation and resolution. The secretariat will then carry out investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator or law enforcement authority when

necessary.
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The Group is committed to adhere to the highest ethical standards. During the
year ended 3| December 2018, the Group had not been a party to any corruption,
bribery or fraud proceedings and was not aware of any pending or threatened
proceedings related to corruption against the Group or any of the Directors. The
Group will continue to comply with ethical requirements and upholds its reputation

to prevent corruption.

Community Investment

The Group has not established a specific community policy, however, social care
is deep-seated in the Group's corporate culture and the Group is committed to
its corporate responsibilities by proactively participating in community and charity
works. The Group has placed a petty cash donation box in office to collect petty
cash from its staff for making donations to non-profit organizations, including

charities and caring houses.
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Report of the Directors
EZEWE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the provision of mobile top-up services to mobile
users in the PRC through (i) electronic banking systems of PRC banks; (i) offline channels,
including convenience stores, mobile phone stores and other third party retailer chains;
and (iii) other channels, including third-party online platforms, the Group's self-operated

websites and WeChat public account.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 3| to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
principal activities of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2018 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page
109. The financial position as at 31 December 2018 of the Group is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages |10 to Il1. The cash flow of the
Group during the year 3| December 2018 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows on pages | 14 to | 15.

The Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 3| December 2018 and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman's
Statement on pages 6 to 8. A discussion on the key financial performance indicators of the
Group for year ended 31 December 2018 is provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 9 to |7 of this annual report. The review and discussion thereof form

part of this Report of the Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following are among the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business of the

Group:

The Group provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
to customers of PRC banks. The Group's business depends on establishing and
maintaining relationships with PRC banks. The Group's failure to continue the
contractual relationship with existing PRC banks or enter into business relationships
with additional PRC banks in a timely manner or on favorable terms may impair the
Group's ability to continually expand its business; changes in the rate of commission
fees charged by the PRC banks may also have a significant impact on the Group's

cost of revenue and gross profit margin;

the Group's reliance on the PRC telecommunication operators and their
distributors to source mobile top-up credits, any deterioration or termination of
the Group's relationships with them may result in severe disruptions to the Group's
business operations, loss of revenues and a material and adverse effect on the
Group's financial condition and results of operations. The Group's profit margin may
also be effected by the decline in the discounts offered by PRC telecommunication

operators and their distributions in the future;

the Group's ability to grow its business depends, in part, upon policies of the PRC
telecommunication operators. If the PRC telecommunication operators decide to
continue expand mobile top-up services or cooperate with PRC banks or third-
party online platforms directly, the Group's results of operations may be materially

and adversely affected;

the Group's business may face competition from the other mobile top-up services,
local branches of the three PRC telecommunication operators and E-commerce
platforms. If the Group or the PRC banks fail to compete effectively, the Group's
market share may decrease and the Group's business, financial condition and

prospect will be materially and adversely affected;

the Group's business and results of operations may be effected by the growth of
internet market and mobile penetration and usage in the PRC, changes in customer
behaviors and preferences on the mobile top-up channels. Any decline in the
popularity of online top-up services in general, or the Group's failure to respond
to industry trends and customer requirements, may adversely affect the Group's

business and results of operations;
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®  development of the PRC telecommunication industry could be negatively affected O FRBEENERAEX MM K

by factors such as unfavorable government policies and changes of consumer NBEREHEEEHE (L EREREF
preferences which may decrease spending on mobile telecommunication services. If BEEREXLNEZNAEATE - i
the PRC telecommunication industry does not develop as anticipated, the Group's FREEXITEZBHRER A5E
business may be harmed and the Group may need to adjust its growth strategy and MEBREERERAEE S AAEHL
the Group's results of operation may be adversely affected; and 1R KK ﬁﬁ$‘§ BREEEERET

STHYE

e the Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may o FKEEMER MBRR BEXER
be influenced to a significant degree by political, economic and social conditions and AIRAERAERE EXHPEOEL - &
government policies in the PRC. ERALERRARBRITEREZE -

The details of risk factors are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” in the FBRRBREZNFREEARARAAHAZT
prospectus of the Company dated 24 December 2015 (the “Prospectus”). —AFETZAZTHEHANERER(BRE
BIRRER]—6 -

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS EENERDBFECTR

For the purposes of ascertaining the members’ eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, RETRRLERFBFAGUNE LREN

the Company's register of members will be closed during the following periods: B ARARIER T HEE EHERRE L

F&:

AGM RRBFAE

®  Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration No later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019

o XEKRMNBPXHAEETHRREER TNER-_Z-NAELA=T—R(EHR) TFER=15

®  Closure of register of members Monday, 3 June 2019 to Thursday, 6 June 2019 (both days inclusive)

o EERBERRELFE 2R AFERAZR(EE-)EZZT-AFARA(EHN)
(BEERMR)

To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly stamped instruments of transfers, BRAEABEERRAFEASYRE HEE -

accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the FEREEESNRNDBEEYHERGBARK

Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor EWAD RN Lt iR R R AT KERLD

Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road AN ERAEABRTRBEARTREAELER A

East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as stated above. A A AEBETERKER I83FASFH
O I7TITI2E 1716 EEERT

SUBSIDIARIES = NG|
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 3| December 2018 are set out in note HE2-E—)\F+ZB=+—HBAARHHNE
31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. AAFIEHR G M BRAMES
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the change in the share capital of the Company for the year ended 3|

December 2018 are set out in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserve of the Company (which is the same as distributable
reserve of the Company) during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note

32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year ended 3|

December 2018 are set out in note |15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CHANNEL PARTNERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross transaction value derived from
the Group's five largest channel partners accounted for approximately 48.3% of the
Group's total gross transaction value. The Group's largest channel partner contributed to

approximately 18.7% of the Group's total gross transaction value.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the cost of sourcing from Group's five
largest suppliers who are telecommunication operators and distributors accounted for
approximately 64.2% of the Group's total sourcing cost. The cost of sourcing from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 23.8% of the Group's total sourcing

cost.

As far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors nor his/her close associates and
none of the Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors possessing over 5%
of the interest in the capital of the Company) possessed any interest in the Group's five

largest channel partners and suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Relationships with Employees

The Group believes that employees are its greatest assets. The Group believes that
a good working environment promotes employees’ physical and psychological well-
being. The Group provides on-the-job training and career development opportunities
to its employees to enhance staff professional skills and retain talents. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary

adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Relationships with Channel Partners

The Group's mobile top-up business consists of mobile top-up services through (i)
electronic banking systems of PRC banks; (i) offline channels, including convenience
stores, mobile phone stores and other third party retailer chains; and (iii) third-party online

platforms, Group's self-operated websites and Group's WeChat public account.

The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
of PRC banks and the gross transaction value derived through electronic banking systems
accounted for approximately 52.3% of the total gross transaction value in 2018. The
Group maintained long-term cooperative relationships with PRC banks as a result of the
Group's satisfactory service quality, strong brand recognition and reputation and leading
market position. The Group had an average of approximately nine years of business
relationship with the five largest state-owned commercial banks. The Group worked with
66 PRC banks, including the five largest state owned commercial banks and 10 of the 12

nation-wide joint stock commercial banks up to the end of 2018.

To complement our online sales channels, the Group also provides mobile top-up services
through offline channels (convenience stores, mobile phone stores and other third party
retailer chains). In 2018, the Group cooperated with approximately 50,364 offline channel

partners to expand our network coverage and our mobile user base.

The Group also utilized other channels (third-party online platforms, Group's websites and
its WeChat public account) to provide mobile top-up services. The Group will endeavour
to increase its transaction volume from other channels due to the development of the

online platforms.
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Relationships with Customers

The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services to mobile users, who are customers
of the Group's channel partners, including PRC banks, offline channel partners and other
channel partners. In other words, customers of the Group's channel partners are the
Group's indirect customers. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the number of
mobile users who used the Group's services was approximately 85.1 million and the five

largest customers collectively contribute less than 30% of the gross transaction value.

Relationships with Suppliers

The Group primarily sources mobile top-up credits from PRC telecommunication
operators and their distributors. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
had business relationships with around 220 suppliers. The Group maintained long term
relationship with most of suppliers, and the Group's five largest suppliers had an average

of approximately eight years of business relationships with the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangcheng

Mr. XU Xinhua

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles, Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua and Mr.
Lin Zhangxi will retire in the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, have offered themselves
to be re-elected and re-appointed at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company are set

out on pages |8 to 25 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company and
is appointed for a specific term of three years commencing from | January 2018 unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the executive

Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a specific term of three years commencing from 24 June 2017 unless
terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing served by either party on the

other

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on 21 June 2017. Each of these letters of appointment is for a term of

three years commencing from 21 June 2017.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set
out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and recommending to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the chairman and chief

executive officer.

There was no service contract entered into/appointment letter signed by the Company
and any Directors to be re-elected in the forthcoming AGM which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors independent.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest paid individuals for the
year ended 3| December 2018 are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the emolument policy of the Company is set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 26 to 47 of this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended

31 December 2018.

Directors' remuneration is subject to Shareholder’s approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties
and responsibilities, the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. No Directors, or any of their respective associates,
was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration for the year ended 31 December

2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” of this annual report, no Director or an entity
connected with a Director has or had a material beneficial interest, directly or indirectly, in
any transaction and arrangement or contract of significance subsisting as at 31 December

2018 or at any time during the year ended 3| December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no Directors or their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business which were in competition or were likely to

compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) or their subsidiary has or had
a matenial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for
the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the group to which the company

or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 3| December 2018.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into a deed of non-competition
(“"Non-Competition Deed") with Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng,
Mr. Xu Xinhua, Fun Charge Technology Limited (“Fun Charge Technology"), Happy
Charge Technology Limited (“Happy Charge Technology”), Cool Charge Technology
Limited (“Cool Charge Technology") and Enjoy Charge Technology Limited (“Enjoy
Charge Technology”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) on 23 September
2015, under which the Controlling Shareholders jointly and severally agreed not to,
whether as principal or agent whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including through
any associate, subsidiary, partnership, join venture or other contractual arrangement of
theirs) and whether for profit or otherwise, carry on, engage, invest, participate or hold
any right or be interested in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, or is likely to be in competition,
directly or indirectly, with the business referred to in the Prospectus that is carried on or

contemplated to be carried on by any member of the Group.

Notwithstanding the above, the foregoing restrictions do not preclude any of the
Controlling Shareholders from having any interest in shares of not more than 5% in any
company which is or whose holding company is listed on any recognized stock exchange
even though the business carried out by such company is or is likely to be in competition
with the business, provided that the aggregate number of shares held by the Controlling
Shareholders do not exceed 5% of the issued shares of such company and none of the
Controlling Shareholders is a director of such company or is entitled to appoint any

director of such company.

74 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

BT HRFERE

BOERERARKE R_F-—1FAN
AZT=B ARAEERIALE B
ELE FERALE FFHEXL Fun
Charge Technology Limited ([Fun Charge
Technology]) * Happy Charge Technology
Limited ([Happy Charge Technology!) * Cool
Charge Technology Limited ([Cool Charge
Technologyl) M Enjoy Charge Technology
Limited ([Enjoy Charge Technology |) (#if&/ &
BRER DI ABFZE(TFHRERE]) &
g - ZRBCRAR R ERREE TS (BRER
FEAZREAREREZIRZET(BHE
BAEMMEA WEAR 6% AELE
FEMBAORH) RERALTIREMEMN)E
T %% RE 2HARREEMAHLSE
BEMKEARRRIBARNOEEER KM
BEEERFRERXERIRFERFOEM
EBIREPHAETAENLEERDENAE
REEMBREIUE LT AS R -

BB AL - b AR ) 3 A P U A AT 4R AR AR SR R
ERAR(ZARSEZRRANEARIR S
PEm)NEBRAS% B R EA L BER
BARPMETMRBEZFTRB BN EE
RS - BRI R EBR R A OB BH
BABRAARIERITRMNE 5% BB EZEEK
RAABARNESHARZTARARMNE
AEE -



Each of the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken in the Non-Competition Deed that
during the term of the Non-Competition Deed, if a new business opportunity is made
available to any Controlling Shareholder or its/his respective associates, such Controlling
Shareholder will or will procure that its/his associates to notify the Company in writing
and provide to the Company all information that is reasonably necessary for the Company
to consider whether or not to pursue such business opportunity. For details of the Non-
Competition Deed, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling

Shareholders- Deed of Non-Competition™ in the Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders confirming
their compliance with the Non-Competition Deed for disclosure in this annual report for
the year ended 3| December 2018. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the compliance and enforcement status of the Non-Competition Deed based
on the confirmations and information provided by the Controlling Shareholders and the
Company, and are of the view that as far as they can ascertain, they are not aware that
the Controlling Shareholders have not abided by the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed for the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interest or short positions of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or
which would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code were as follows:
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Long Position in the ordinary shares of the Company REAABEBRNHER
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Number of capital®
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held HERTRAE
ESpA 5 EEME FEROHE BREDLO
Mr. Huang Junmou Interest in controlled corporation 94,500,000 22.77%
BERREEO SELERER
Mr. Yang Hua® Interest in controlled corporation 63,000,000 15.18%
BEXED RELERR
Mr. Li Xiangcheng® Interest in controlled corporation 56,100,000 13.52%
FERELO REAE RS
Mr. Xu Xinhua® Interest in controlled corporation 26,400,000 6.36%
RETERAE® SELERER
Notes: BisE
(1) Mr. Huang Junmou beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Fun Charge Technology. By () BEFELEEZESFun Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou is deemed to be interested in 94,500,000 Shares held MEERAE - RIEFH LB KA - HEF
by Fun Charge Technology. 55 A 448 A H Fun Charge Technology 75 A K/
94,500,000 Bt B HE s
(2)  Mr. Yang Hua beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Happy Charge Technology. By Q) HEXEB A Happy Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yang Hua is deemed to be interested in 63,000,000 Shares held by H 2R - RIFFZ REBER - 5ESE
Happy Charge Technology. HE AR BT Happy Charge Technology 15 5 )
63,000,000 B {7 #E 5 4 2
(3) M. Li Xiangcheng beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Cool Charge Technology. By Q) ZFTEMEHEEZMA Cool Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Xiangcheng is deemed to be interested in 56,100,000 Shares held B2 EBRA - RIFEH KRN - 2K
by Cool Charge Technology. S A AR B Cool Charge Technology £ 75 )
56,100,000 A7 A #E A o
(4)  Mr. Xu Xinhua beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Enjoy Charge Technology. By (4)  FFETES A E A Enjoy Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Xinhua is deemed to be interested in 26,400,000 Shares held by BRI - RIFFEH LB - FHE
Enjoy Charge Technology. 55 4 #4813 7 Enjoy Charge Technology ¥ B
#) 26,400,000 A A7 7 A e
(5)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share G) BEESLINEZZE-N\F+=A=1+—H

capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 3| December 2018.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which was required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2018, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following persons
(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed or taken
to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which are
required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of

SFO were as follows:
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Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
securities issued share
held capital ©
Substantial shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest BERGH HERTRAE
FERR 5 EmME et = BREDLO
Fun Charge Technology!" Beneficial owner 94,500,000 22.77%
BEEAA
Happy Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 63,000,000 15.18%
BaBEAA
Cool Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 56,100,000 13.52%
BERBEA
Mr. Huang Shaowu® Interested in controlled corporation 60,000,000 14.46%
HMR L RELE R
China Charge Technology Limited® Beneficial owner 60,000,000 14.46%
ExBEAA
Enjoy Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 26,400,000 6.36%
BERBEAA
FEREBEBRAF 77
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Notes:

Mr. Huang Junmou is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Fun
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou is deemed to be interested in
94,500,000 Shares held by Fun Charge Technology.

Mr. Yang Hua is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Happy
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yang Hua is deemed to be interested in
63,000,000 Shares held by Happy Charge Technology.

Mr. Li Xiangcheng is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Cool
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Xiangcheng is deemed to be interested in
56,100,000 Shares held by Cool Charge Technology.

Mr. Huang Shaowu is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of China
Charge Technology Limited (“China Charge Technology"). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang
Shaowu is deemed to be interested in 60,000,000 Shares held by China Charge Technology.

Mr. Xu Xinhua is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Enjoy
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Xinhua is deemed to be interested in
26,400,000 Shares held by Enjoy Charge Technology.

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share
capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2018,

As at 3| December 2018, no Shareholders has agreed to waive or waived any dividends.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company's Directors are not aware of any person who will

have an interest or short position in Shares or underlying Shares which would be required

to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme prepared in accordance with Chapter |7 of the
Listing Rules on 14 December 2015 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) as defined in the Scheme to
recognize and acknowledge their contribution to the Group and motivate them to higher

levels of performance.

Certain provisions of the Scheme were amended and approved in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 November 2016, the definition of Eligible
Participants in the Scheme was amended to include the advisors, consultants, suppliers,
customers, distributors, business partners and such other persons who, in the opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries as participants eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to Eligible Participants options
(the "Option(s)") to subscribe for Shares subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in

the Scheme.

()  Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is established to recognize and acknowledge the
contributions that Eligible Participants had or may have made to the Group. The
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to achieve the objective of attracting and
retaining high caliber Eligible Participants to motivate the Eligible Participants to

higher levels of performance and to promote the success of the Group's business.
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(iii)

Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant options to:

(i) any full-time employees of the Company or its subsidiaries;

(i) any executive or non-executive Directors (including independent non-

executive Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries; and

(i) the advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors, business partners
and such other persons who, in the opinion of the Board, will contribute or

have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Acceptance of an offer of Options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the grantee and
to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document constituting acceptances
of the Options duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received
by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such payment shall
in no circumstances be refundable. Any offer to grant an Option to subscribe for
Shares may be accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for which it
is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares
on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly
stated in the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the Opinion.
To the extent that the offer to grant an Option is not accepted by any prescribed

acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.
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(iv)

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be granted
under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the company
must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the total number of Shares issued on 7
January 2016, being 40,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 9.64% of the
Company's issued share capital as at the date of this annual report, excluding
for this purpose Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to Options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (or any other
share option schemes of the Company). Subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board

may:

(i) refresh this limit at any time to 0% of the Shares in issue as at the date of

the approval by our Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board. The circular issued by the Company to the
Shareholders shall contain a generic description of the specified Eligible
Participants who may be granted such Options, the number and terms of
the Options to be granted, the purpose of granting Options to the specified
Eligible Participants with an explanation as to how the Options serve
such purpose, the information required under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

(i) Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to the effect of alterations to
capital, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time
shall not exceed 30% of our Shares in issue from time to time. No options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the Scheme)

if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise

of the Options granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of

the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible

Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed % of

the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of Options in excess of

this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)

82

the issue of a circular by the Company containing the identity of the Eligible
Participant, the numbers and terms of the Options to be granted (and
Options previously granted to such participant) the information as required
under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of
the Listing Rules; and

the approval of the Company's Shareholders in general meeting and/or
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time
with such Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise
price) of Options to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board meeting at which the
Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible Participant shall be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the subscription

price of the Shares.
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(vi)  Option Period
An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted
and prior to the expiry of |0 years from that date. The period during which an
Option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no Option may be exercised more than |0 years after it has been
granted. No Option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of approval
of the Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of |0 years

from the date of its adoption.

(vii)  The subscription price per Share
The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall

determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of:

() the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant in respect of the

relevant Options;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant or where the Company has been
listed for less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the

closing price; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

(viiiy Remaining life of the scheme
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 14
December 2015.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and up to the date of this annual report, no Option

had been granted, exercised, lapsed nor cancelled under the Scheme.

For details of the Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Statutory and General

Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Contractual Arrangements

The Company is primarily engaged in, through Shenzhen NNK; the provision of
mobile top-up services and data usage top-up services (the “Principal Business”),
which is considered to be value-added telecommunications services, a sector where
foreign investment is subject to significant restrictions under PRC laws and regulations.
Accordingly, the Company, as foreign investors, cannot directly hold controlling interest
in Shenzhen NNK; the Company's PRC Operating Entity, which holds certain licenses
and permits required for the operation of the Company's principal business. As a result,
the Company’s wholly foreign-owned enterprise (the “WFOE"), Daily Charge Shenzhen
entered into a series of contractual arrangements with Shenzhen NNK; the Company's
PRC Operating Entity, and its shareholders (the “Contractual Arrangements”) in order
to conduct the Principal Business in the PRC and to exercise effective control over the
operations of, and enjoy all economic benefits of, the Company's PRC Operating Entity.
The series of the Contractual Arrangements as a whole allow the financial performance
and economic benefits of the business of Shenzhen NNK to be included in the financial
information of the Company as if the Company is the parent company of Shenzhen NNK.
Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, Shenzhen NNK has an obligation to pay the
consulting and technical supporting services fees to WFOE and WFOE has legal rights
to retain such fees as its revenue, and the Company is able to acquire the entire profit
(including the retained eamings) of Shenzhen NNK under the terms of the Contractual

Arrangements.
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Shenzhen NNK is owned as to 31.5% by Mr. Huang Junmou, 21% by Mr. Yang Hua,
18.7% by Mr. Li Xiangcheng, 8.8% by Mr. Xu Xinhua and 20% by Mr. Huang Shaowu
(collectively, the “Registered Shareholders™). Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and
the Registered Shareholders, as the case may be, entered into the following agreements as

at 31 December 2018:

The management and operation agreement dated 4 March 2015 and its
supplemental agreement dated 6 April 2015 entered into among Daily Charge
Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to which
Daily Charge Shenzhen agreed to provide to Shenzhen NNK and its subsidiaries
management and operation services. Pursuant to the management and operation
agreement, Shenzhen NNK shall pay to Daily Charge Shenzhen a service fee that
equals to 100% of the annual revenue of Shenzhen NNK after deducting costs
and expenses (except the service fee) incurred during the course of management
and operation of Shenzhen NNK and any taxes, the prior-year loss (if any) and
contribution of social insurance and housing provident fund by Shenzhen NNK in

any given year.

2. The exclusive option agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to
which the Registered Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted an
exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge Shenzhen to
elect to purchase, when permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part
of the equity interests in Shenzhen NNK from the Registered Shareholders itself
or through its designated person(s). Such designated person(s) shall be appointed
by Daily Charge Shenzhen in its sole discretion. The transfer price of the relevant
equity interests shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under PRC law,
and the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to return in full the consideration

received in relation to such transfer of equity interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen.
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The entrustment agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily Charge
Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, with an annexure of
the power of attorney dated 4 March 2015 executed by each of the Registered
Shareholders in favour of Daily Charge Shenzhen and/or its designated person(s).
Pursuant to the entrustment agreement and the powers of attorney annexed
thereto, each of the Registered Shareholders irrevocably agreed to authorize
Daily Charge Shenzhen or its designated person(s) to exercise all of his rights and
powers as shareholder of Shenzhen NNK; including the rights to convene and
attend shareholders’ meetings, to exercise voting rights in shareholders’ meetings,
to appoint and dismiss directors and supervisors, to decide on any acquisition or
disposal of his equity interest in Shenzhen NNK or the winding-up or dissolution
of Shenzhen NNK; to file documents with relevant government authorities or
regulatory bodies, and to exercise such other shareholders’ rights as stipulated

under the articles of association of Shenzhen NNK,

The equity pledge agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to
which the Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge all of their respective equity
interests in Shenzhen NNK to Daily Charge Shenzhen to secure performance of
all their obligations and the obligations of Shenzhen NNK under the management
and operation agreement, the exclusive option agreement and the entrustment
agreement underlying the Contractual Arrangements. Under the equity pledge
agreement, if Shenzhen NINK declares any dividends during the term of the pledge,
Daily Charge Shenzhen is entitled to receive all dividends or other income arising
from the pledged equity interests, if any. If any of the Registered Shareholders
or Shenzhen NNK breaches or fails to fulfil the obligations under any of the
aforementioned agreements, Daily Charge Shenzhen, as the pledgee, will be

entitled to dispose of the pledged equity interests, entirely or partially.
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5. The exclusive intellectual property purchase option agreement dated 4 March
2015 entered into between Shenzhen NNK and Daily Charge Shenzhen, pursuant
to which Shenzhen NNK agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally grant an
exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen to purchase certain of Shenzhen NNK's
intellectual properties, including but not limited to trademarks, patents, domain
names and copyright and whether registered or unregistered, entirely or partially, at

the minimum purchase price permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.

The detailed terms of which are set out in the section headed "History, Reorganization

and Corporate Structure- Contractual Arrangements” of the Prospectus.

In addition, the Registered Shareholders granted the individual appointed by WFOE,
to exercise their shareholder’s rights, including without limitation, to declare, receive
or decline the dividends or distribution. In the event that the Registered Shareholders
receive any dividends or distribution of assets declared by Shenzhen NNK; the Registered
Shareholders are required to retum the dividend or distribution of assets so received to
WFQE. Therefore, WFOE controls the management and board of directors of Shenzhen
NNK and is able to acquire the entire profit generated from Shenzhen NNK under
the Contractual Arrangements. Apart from the above, there was no new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group and the PRC
Obperational Entity during the year ended 31 December 2018. There was no material
change in the Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances during the year ended
31 December 2018. None of the contracts mentioned above has been unwound during
the year ended 31 December 2018 as none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of

the contracts under the Contractual Arrangements has been removed.

Set out below are certain key financial information of Shenzhen NNK as prepared in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards during the year ended 31 December
2018:
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Year ended

3| December
2018

BZ=
—E2-N\F
+=-B=+-H
fI:3:
RMB’000
ARBTR

Revenue Ygs

Total assets

60,174
369,820

The Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that the
Contractual Arrangements are (i) fundamental to the Group's legal structure and business
operations; and (ii) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's

Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Group.

Waiver from Stock Exchange and Annual Renew

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the
announcement and independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter [4A
of the Listing Rules; (ii) the requirement of setting a maximum aggregate annual value,
i.e. an annual cap, for the fees payable to Daily Charge Shenzhen under the Contractual
Arrangements; and (iii) the requirement of limiting the term of the Contractual
Arrangements to three years or less, for so long as the Company's shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange subject to certain conditions as disclosed on pages 204 to 205 of the

Prospectus.
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RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS AND
THE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO MITIGATE THE RISKS

Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENRFERRNER
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

DR ERER B0 AR R B

If the PRC government finds that the agreements that establish the
structure for operating the Company's business in the PRC do not
comply with PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their
interpretations change in the future, the Company could be subject to
severe penalties or be forced to relinquish the Company's interests in
those operations.
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The Company's Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing operational control as direct ownership and the Company's
PRC Operating Entity or its shareholders may fail to perform their

obligations under the Company’s Contractual Arrangements.
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The Directors will closely monitor the latest development of the
existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations (such as Draft
Foreign Investment Law), and will take measures to ensure that the
Company is under the control of PRC investors so as to comply with

relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.
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According to the entrustment agreement and powers of attorney,
equity pledge agreement and the management and operation
agreement, the arbitration tribunal may decide compensation for the
equity interests or property ownership of PRC Operating Entity or
their shareholders, decide enforceable remedy or demand a bankrupt
on PRC Operating Entity or their shareholders for relevant business
or enforceable asset transfer. Any party is entitled to request the
competent court to execute the arbitration award when it comes into

effect.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENRERRNER

Mitigation actions taken by the Company
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The Company may lose the ability to use assets held by its PRC
Operating Entity that are material to the operation of the Company's
business if the Company's PRC Operating Entity declares bankruptcy or

becomes subject to a dissolution or liquidation proceeding.
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The Company's Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and additional taxes may be imposed. A
finding that the Company owes additional taxes could substantially

reduce the Company's net income and the value of the investment.
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Pursuant to the exclusive option agreements, in the event of a
mandatory liquidation required by the laws of PRC, the Registered
Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted an exclusive
option to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge Shenzhen
to elect to purchase, when permitted by the then applicable PRC
laws, all or any part of the equity interests in Shenzhen NNK from the
Registered Shareholders itself or through its designated person(s). Such
designated person(s) shall be appointed by Daily Charge Shenzhen in
its sole discretion. The transfer price of the relevant equity interests
shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws and
the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to return in full the
consideration received in relation to such transfer of equity interests to
Daily Charge Shenzhen.
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Having considered (i) the tax compliance certificate issued by the
relevant tax authorities; and (ii) that the Company has not encountered
any interference or encumbrances from any PRC tax authority or other
government authorities to the Contractual Arrangements, the Directors
are of the view that the Contractual Arrangements are not likely to be
challenged by the PRC tax authority and other government authorities.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company
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The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity may have  (a)  The independent non-executive Directors will review, on an

conflicts of interest with the Company, which may materially and

adversely affect the Company's business.
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(d)

annual basis, the compliance with and enforcement of the Non-
Competition Deed that the Company entered into with the
Controlling Shareholders on 23 September 2015;
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each of the Controlling Shareholders undertakes to provide all
information necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and professional advisors of the
Company with regard to the compliance with and enforcement
of the Non-Competition Deed;
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each of the Controlling Shareholders will disclose decisions
on matters reviewed by our independent non-executive
Directors of the Company related to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Non-Competition Deed in the annual report
of, or by way of announcement; and

ERRERE BN ERINREA A REB LN TESN
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the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual declaration on
compliance with their undertaking under the Non-competition
Deed in the corporate governance report in Company’s annual
report.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENRERRNER

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

D F R RER A9 AR AR 1

The Contractual Arrangements between the Company's WFOE
and the Company's PRC Operating Entity may subject the Group to
increased income tax due to the different income tax rates applicable
to the Company's WFOE and the PRC Operating Entity and adversely

affect the Company's results of operations.
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The Company conducts its business operation in the PRC through its
PRC Operating Entity by way of the Contractual Arrangements, but
certain terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable
under PRC law.
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The WFOE was accredited as a software enterprise in January 2016
and therefore is entitled to an income tax exemption for two years
starting from the first profitable year and an income tax rate of 12.5%
after a 50% reduction for the subsequent three years. The WFOE
would use its reasonable endeavours to take all necessary actions to
maintain its qualification as software enterprise.
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The Contractual Arrangements contain provisions to the effect that
the arbitral body may award remedies over the shares and/or assets of
the Company's PRC Operating Entity, injunctive relief and/or assets of
the Company's PRC Operating Entity. These agreements also contain
provisions to the effect that courts of competent jurisdictions are
empowered to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal. Any party is entitled to
request the competent court to execute the arbitration award when it
comes into effect.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENRERRNER

Report of the Directors
EEEHE

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

D F T RER A0 AR AR 1

If the Company exercises the option to acquire equity ownership of
the PRC Operating Entity, the ownership transfer must be approved
or filed with PRC governmental authorities and is subject to taxation,

which may result in substantial costs.
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Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, Daily Charge Shenzhen
(or its designee) has the exclusive right to purchase all or any part of
the equity interests in the Company's PRC Operating Entity from the
respective shareholders for the minimum price permitted under the
then applicable PRC laws. The equity interest transfer is subject to the
approval from or filings with Ministry of Commerce of the PRC (the
“MOFCOM"), Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of PRC
(the “MIIT") and/or their local competent branches. According to the
exclusive option agreement, the transfer price of the relevant equity
interests shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under PRC
law and the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to return in full
the consideration received in relation to such transfer of equity interests
to Daily Charge Shenzhen. In addition, the equity interest transfer
price may be subject to review and tax adjustment by the relevant tax
authority. The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity
will be subject to PRC individual income tax on the difference between
the equity interest transfer price and the then current registered capital
of the Company's PRC Operating Entity. The shareholders of the
Company's PRC Operating Entity will pay, after deducting any such tax,
the remaining amount to Daily Charge Shenzhen under the Contractual
Arrangements. The amount to be received by Daily Charge Shenzhen
may also be subject to enterprise income tax.
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Report of the Directors
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For details of the risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements, please refer to
the section headed “Risk Factors-Risks Relating to Our Contractual Arrangement” in the

Prospectus.

Pursuant to Rule [4A55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions under the Contractual Arrangements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions have been entered into:
(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iify  in accordance with the relevant arrangements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a

whole.

The independent non-executive Directors have also confirmed that (i) the transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2018 have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Contractual Arrangement, have been
operated so that the revenue generated by the Company's Operating Entity has been
substantially retained by Daily Charge Shenzhen; (ii) no dividends or other distributions
have been made by the Company's PRC Operating Entity to the holders of its equity
interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group;
and (iii) there were no new contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced between the

Group and the PRC Operating Entity during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditor of
the Company to carry out procedures in relation to the Contractual Arrangements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work performed, the auditors of

the Company have provided a letter to the Board confirming that:
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(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company to

believe that the Contractual Arrangements have not been approved by the Board;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements under the Contractual Arrangements

governing such transactions; and

(ify  nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors of the Company to
believe that dividends or other distributions have been made by Shenzhen NNK to
their equity interest holders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other than
those transaction headed “Connected Transactions” above, none of them constitutes a

connected transaction required for disclosure under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions mentioned in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements are not continuing connected transactions which are subject to annual
reporting requirements under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules, hence there is no
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules for such

transactions.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

As a specialized online transaction service provider, the Group's business do not involve
in production-related air, water and land pollutions which are regulated by the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC. No hazardous waste was produced by the Group in its

course of business in year ended 3| December 2018.

The Group complies with the relevant laws and regulations in environmental protection
and impact on the environment has always been a major focus of the Group. The
conscientious use of resources and adoption of best practices across the Group's business
operation underlies its commitment to protect the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to
the employees. The Group encourages all employees to be eco-friendly and participate in
energy and resources saving, such as encouraging duplex printing and reuse of single-sided
printed papers, saving water and electricity to reduce energy consumption. The Group will
continuously make efforts to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable

development.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and operating in
compliance with the laws and integrity through abidance by relevant laws and regulations,
industry regulations and business ethics. For the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company had not been and were not a party
to any material legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Company was not
aware of any pending or threatened legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings against
the Company or any of the Directors which could have a material adverse effect on the

Company's operations or financial condition.

Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the basis
of personal characteristics. The Group has employee handbooks outlining terms and
conditions of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct and behavior, employees'
rights and benefits. The Group also establishes and implements policies that promote a

harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise and regards
human resources as its corporate wealth. The Group provides on-the-job training and
development opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression. Through
different trainings, staff's professional knowledge in corporate operations, occupational and
management skills are enhanced. The Group has also organized wide range of activities for
employees, such as outings, professional skills sharing class and New Year celebration to

promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment.
Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. The Group prioritizes the health and well-being of staff.
In order to provide employees with adequate medical coverage, staff are entitled to free

medical check-ups, in addition to medical insurance required by laws.
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Training and Development

The Group is committed to the professional and personal development and growth of all
employees and considers training and development a continual process. Training courses
are provided to help employees develop and maintain consistency, proficiency and
professionalism. Structured training programs including courses, seminars and workshops
are offered to staff at all levels with the objective of grooming and unleashing their full
potential, organizational development and facilitating team synergies. Employees are
encouraged to take advantage of these programs to equip themselves with the skills and

knowledge for expanded career opportunities within the Group.

Commitment to Quality

The Group has made relentless efforts in delivering premium customer experience
with superior mobile top-up services. The staff have an acute judgment on market and
customers' needs. Therefore, customer requests are promptly satisfied and steered
through establishing various channels to foster two-way communication. With a proactive
approach on continuous improvement in customer experience, the Board believes that

the Group can acquire competitive advantages in its business operation.

Management of Supply Chain

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria in selecting suppliers, and has
established a supplier evaluation system in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and after-
sales service. The Group will carry out long-term quality monitoring and conduct regular
reviews on all suppliers as well as causal examination on different suppliers to ensure

quality supplies and services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Principal
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 26 to 47 contained in this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Articles provides that every director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
director of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which

judgment is given in his favor, or in which he or she is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs associated with

defending any proceeding which may be brought against the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the period commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's

listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

BANK LOANS
All the bank loans of the Group are repayable on demand or within one year. Details
of the bank loans of the Group as at 3| December 2018 are set out in note 22 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

DONATION
The Group did not make any donation during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB10,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the Scheme of the Company as set out in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 3|

December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 31 December 2018.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company. If the Shareholders are unsure
about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult

an expert.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matter,
including the review of the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended 3| December 2018 have been audited by the Company's external auditors,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the past five financial

years is set out on page |92 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events that may affect the business operation and/or the

financial position of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2018.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
the Listing Date and the Company raised net proceeds (after the exercise of the
over-allotment option and after deducting the underwriting fees, commissions and
other expenses payable by the Company in connection with the global offering) of
approximately HK$52.0 million. During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2018, approximately HK$5.2 million of the net proceeds from the listing were utilised for
general operation expense, approximately HK$2.2 million of the net proceeds from the
listing were utilised for software and research and development activities, approximately
HK$10.4 million of the net proceeds from the listing were utilised for enhancing the
Group's brand's recognition by means of expanding its PRC bank coverage, approximately
HK$3.7 million of the net proceeds from the listing was utilised for upgrading our network
infrastructure including increasing the lease lines for bandwidth expansion to optimize our
network operating environment, and approximately HK$5.3 million of the net proceeds
from the listing was utilised for sourcing mobile top-up credits. Such utilisation of the
net proceeds was in accordance with the proposed allocations as set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The unutilised portion of

the net proceeds were deposited in reputable banks in Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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AUDITOR
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2018 have
been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which will retire, and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Huang Junmou

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY RBERE

Deloitte.

To the Shareholders of NNK Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NNK Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 109 to 91, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 3|1 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

l. Existence of inventories

We identified the existence of inventories as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the virtual

nature of some inventories.

The carrying amount of inventories amounted to approximately RMB34 million is carried

in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures in relation to the existence of inventories included:

i) Involving our internal information technology specialists to evaluate the design and
effectiveness of general computer controls and application controls of the 007ka

Top-up Platform (the “System”);

iN) Involving our internal information technology specialists to check the stock
movement of virtual prepaid mobile top-ups cards recorded in the System to be in
line with the inventory balances recorded in ledger as at the end of the reporting

period; and

i) Involving our internal information technology specialists to verify the acquisition
record before year end and subsequent usage record after year end of the same
virtual pre-paid mobile top-up card in the System, on a sample basis, to ensure

their existence as at year end.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RRE T

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

2. Revenue recognition on mobile top-up service

During the year, the majority of the Group's revenue was contributed from the top-up
service. We identified the revenue recognition on mobile top-up service as a key audit
matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial statements. The revenue was

approximately RMB60 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Once a top-up request from an individual mobile was placed, the request would be

automatically transferred from the channels of customer to the System.

Al the top-up transactions were generated and recorded in the System automatically.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition included:

i) Evaluating the effectiveness of internal controls over the revenue recognition

process in respect of top-up service and the System;

i) Confirming with the major channels of customer of the Group for the transaction

amounts of top-up service;

i) Involving our internal information technology specialists in testing the validity and
accuracy of the sales orders received by the Group recognised in the System and

its authentication process on security validation check; and

V) Involving our internal information technology specialists to perform various data

analysis on the transaction pattem.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RRE T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RRE T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is
Cheung Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GREsERkEMEEHKER

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

2018 2017
“®-N\F T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

P &E ARBTRT ARETE

Revenue WA 6 60,280 83,321
Less: Tax surcharge - BnaE (203) (1,437)
Cost of revenue W AR A (35,759) (38,520)
Gross profit E7 24318 43364
Other income and expenses H AU A R X2 8 7,955 (713)
Distribution and selling expenses DIERHER X (11,505) (15,775)
Administrative expenses THEY (28,803) (27,195)
Research and development expenses MEEY (9,200) (13017)
Finance costs BIRRR 9 (4,375) (6,393)
Loss before tax BREAIER 10 (21,610) (19,729)
Income tax (expense) credit Prighi(Ax) B I (4,224 691
FABRREE

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year Fx @ (25,834) (19,038)
Total comprehensive expense attributable ARAAERARERE

to owners of the Company Fx 45 (25,834) (19,038)
Loss per share SREE 14
— Basic (RMB) - ER(ARET) (0.06) (0.05)

FFEREEFRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PBRRR

At 3/ December 2018
REF—/\F+=A=1—H

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt ARBTRT AR%TR
Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 15 2,343 4,876
Rental deposits HERe 427 1,188
Deferred tax assets BRETIEAE 24 600 6,168
3,370 12,232

Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 16 33,600 117,992
Trade receivables B IR |7 118,309 58,312
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNFIE - e REMERIE 18 50,054 85,436
Tax recoverable QL EE e — 939
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 19 115,822 144,821
317,785 407,500

Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables BHREMNFIE 20 47,788 39,626
Other payables H it JE T FROR 21 47,103 42348
Bank borrowings FITER 2 40,000 124,000
134,891 205974
Net current assets MEEEFE 182,894 201,526
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBAR 186,264 213,758
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 3/ December 2018
RoF~/\#1=A=+—A

2018 2017
= G
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

P &E ARBTRT ARETE

Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Government grants BB 23 = 227

Deferred tax liabilities ELERARR 24 7,936 9,280
7,936 9,507

Net assets BEFE 178,328 204,251

Capital and reserves EXR %

Share capital P 25 27,221 27,22

Reserves E4 151,107 177,030

Total equity ks 178,328 204,251

The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 191 were approved and authorised FIVZRI9 ENGEAMBREACHEZEN
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: “E-AEZRA-t+)\BHERTETR I
ATIATRBRE :

Huang Junmou, Yang Hua,
BERE BE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 EF

FFEREEFRAR ~|~|1
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERBREHR

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYNGIE 2PN
Share Share Capital  Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total

k& RORE BiEKE EERE REEFN @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR
(Notei)  (Note ii)

(HHaE) (R
At | January 2017 R_E—tF—-HA—H 27221 47,997 46,510 10340 101,181 233,249
Loss and total comprehensive EREER
expense for the year PHEMAXER = = — — (19,038) (19,038)
Dividend paid (Note 13) ERRE (I 13) — (9.960) — — — (9.960)
At 3! December 2017 R-E—tF
+-A=+-H 27221 38,037 46510 10,340 82143 204251
Adjustments (Note 3) HE(MEE3) — — — - (89) (89)
At | January 2018 (restated) RZZ-N\EF
—A—R(&E5) 27221 38,037 46510 10,340 82054 204162
Loss and total comprehensive ERNBEERZERXAE
expense for the year = = = = (25834) (25.834)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\EF
| =8 27221 38,037 46,510 10340 56220 178328
‘l 1 2 NNK Group Limited
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Notes:

(i)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

The amounts of capital reserve mainly include:

(@  anamount of RMB25,510,000 representing the differences between the consideration
received on disposal of the entire equity interests in Shenzhen Shenzhou Tongfu
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Tongfu”) and Chengdu Shenzhou Tongfu
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Tongfu"), subsidiaries of the Company, to a related
company and the Shareholders (as defined in note ), and the carrying amounts of

the net assets of Shenzhou Tongfu and Chengdu Tongfu; and

(b)  an amount of RMB20,680,000 representing the difference between the nominal value
of the share capital issued by the Company and the registered capital of a subsidiary
acquired by the Company upon a corporate reorganisation for the purpose of listing
of the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

As stipulated by the relevant laws in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory reserve fund. The minimum transfer to
statutory reserves is 10% of profit after tax of the PRC subsidiaries according to the PRC
subsidiaries’ statutory financial statements. No appropriation is required if the balance of the
statutory reserves has reached 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The

statutory reserves can be used to make up losses or for conversion into capital.

B aE -

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

BARRERIEER

@

(®)

SBARK255100007T BRI —K
B AR RRE(ERRWF HE
AARM BRI TN BRI
BRAT( MBS ) R E T8N
B ARRAF(RBERS N2
ERA% A PTURER B R (B BN E S AR
WENOFEERAE HNERE
K

£ % ARH206800007C » R AR
DERDEBRBHELZHMERAF
([ FT)) EmmETAREARA
NEIEBITRAHEEEAARMEA
H—EHBARNEREAR MM E
58 o

hEARKEME([HE AR EETR  +
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= IE:%/)ILE'%:Z

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

2018 2017
“E-N\F ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Loss before tax BB AR (21,610) (19,729)
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB LRETE 2,197 4,060
Finance costs BB 4375 6393
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables T ST IERRNRHEER 52 4,000
Government grants related to assets B EMRBBNHE (227) (668)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERRENER 253 646
Interest income FEWA (4,896) (5,675)
Unrealised net exchange (gains) losses REBIME (Wa) BEFR (1,230) 2618
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital LEEREPNKERERE (21,086) (8,355)
Decrease (increase) in rental deposits HERERD(Em) 761 (690)
Decrease in inventories FERD 84,392 39,180
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables B 5 EWRIB (L) (60,138) 7563
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, FNFIE - BE REAEK
deposits and other receivables IR A (B m) 35,382 (37,938)
Increase in trade payables B 5 e FIBE 8,162 2715
Increase (decrease) in other payables HAh e IR I ORL ) 4,755 (10,775)
Cash generated from (used in) operations REFBMEMA)RS 52,228 (8,300)
Income tax refund (paid) PR BRT (BNPTEH) 939 (29)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZHME A RLFE 53,167 (8,329)

‘l 14 NNK Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SERERER

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

2018 2017
—®-N\E —F-tf
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH

Withdrawal of structured products BEEEMEM 2,863,050 4,960,540
Interest received FiTU 8 4,896 5,675
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE RRERERE 146 93
Placement of structured products EEEBEED (2,863,050)  (4,960540)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELREE (63) (2,366)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFZBHMEREFH 4,979 3402
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH

Repayments of bank borrowings BERITREK (146,807) (385,482)
Interest paid ERFE (4,375) (6,393)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERG A 62,807 479,482
Dividend paid EfIRE — (9,960)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH (A AEREFHR (88,375) 27,647
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFEWORND )L R (30,229) 22,720
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R—A—BHREEREEEY 144,821 124,719
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEFE R BT E 1,230 (2,618)

Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December,

represented by bank balances and cash

RT-A=+—BHBELNRESE
By ARTEHERE 115,822 144,82 |

FFEREEFRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Its ultimate controlling shareholders are Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang
Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng, Mr. Xu Xinhua and Mr. Huang Shaowu (collectively
referred to as the “Shareholders™). The Company's registered office is located
at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KYI-1104, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is 5/F. Building F5, TCL International E
City, No. 1001 Zhongshan Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC. The
Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of the Group is

engaged in providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

‘l ‘l 6 NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The mobile top-up service provided by the Group is prohibited and restricted from
foreign investment in the PRC pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations.
The Group has adopted a series of contracts with the Shareholders (the “Structured
Contracts”) and Shenzhen Niannianka Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
NNK") to maintain and exercise the control over the operation of Shenzhen NNK,
and to obtain all of its entire economic benefits (the “VIE Arrangement”). The

Structured Contracts are irrevocable and enable the Group to:

*  exercise effective financial and operational control over Shenzhen NNK;

*  exerdise equity holders’ voting rights of Shenzhen NNK;

®  receive substantially all economic returms generated by Shenzhen NNK in
consideration for the business support, technical and consulting services

provided by the Group;

®  obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase the entire equity

interest in Shenzhen NNK from the Shareholders; and

®  obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Shenzhen NNK from
the Shareholders as collateral security for all of Shenzhen NNK due to the
Group and to secure performance of Shareholders’ obligations under the

Structured Contracts.

The Company does not have any equity interest in Shenzhen NNK. However,
as a result of the Structured Contracts, the Company has power over Shenzhen
NNK and has rights to variable returns from its involvement with Shenzhen NNK
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over Shenzhen NNK
and therefore is considered to have control over Shenzhen NNK. Consequently,
the Company regards Shenzhen NNK as an indirect subsidiary and consolidated
the financial position and results of Shenzhen NNK in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group during both years.

7%

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year
The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") for the first

time in the current year:

A REBTEBMBREER
([ERUBRELEA] ) NWER
AEEBRHEMNHTREBTERY
BimEER
AEERAFEERRRERGMA
S((ERETMAE ) B|MHATHA
REETBERBMEREER

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
BAEMBRELRNE IR SRIE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendments

BEBMEREERE 155
HK(FRIC) = Int 22
ER(ERVBRERREEE) RBENR IMNEXFHRENKE

KEEPRNZMARIERBER

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2
BREMBREENE 2RBIIAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 4
EEMBHREERE4REITR)
Amendments to HKAS 28
BRGHRAE 28R (BIIK)

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
MBI RERNRR BN DR E
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

EREEVBRERNEIRERTA IRFTEHHEREERE 45 RREH ]

As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
ERBERUGHERA _T-—NFE_T— R FRAFEZCENT D

Amendments to HKAS 40
EBREAE 0B (BTA)

Transfers of Investment Property

BREENE

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

‘l 1 8 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

R T XA &S - RAEEREAAET K
REIBERBREENHAKERK
FERBEFENHBRRIMAR,
IREEAPBERRABRE L EEK
BAYE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

3.1

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application on HKFRS |5

“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS || Construction Contracts

and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of initial application,
| January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained earnings and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
I5, the Group has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed at | January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as comparative information

was prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS | | and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from mobile top-up service.

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS |5 are disclosed in notes 6 and

4 respectively.

Based on the current business model, there was no impact resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 15 on the amounts reported in the consolidated

financial statements for the current year.
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

32

120

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application on HKFRS 9

“Financial Instruments and the related amendments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
and the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for |) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for

financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in HKFRS 9. i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at | January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements to instruments
that have already been derecognised as at | January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at | January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained

eamings, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in

note 4.

NNK Group Limited
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
3.2 Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application on HKFRS 9

“Financial Instruments and the related amendments” (continued)

Summary of effects anising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial

assets subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 at the date of initial application, |

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

HARKETERMBREER

(TERMBREEA ) WERF)

30 EABBUBHREEALIR S
RIAREBET I EHEEY
ER2H(F)
B KB BB B R R 9%,
EEZHEHE
TRITHRNBEAAH-Z
—\E¥-A-BREBBHBR

January 2018. SENFIFHGEREEFR
EREEZNBNGE -
Trade Retained
receivables earnings
g5 BRI RERF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P aE ARBTRT AR%TrR
Closing balance at RZF—+F+ZA=+—AHEX
31 December 2017- HKAS 39 BB ENE3R 58312 (82,143)
Effect arising from initial application BRERBBMBMEERF 95
of HKFRS 9: Remeasurement EEZTE  BXNiE
Impairment under ECL model BHEEERERNET ZHE (@) (89) 89
Opening balance at | January 2018 RZZ—-N\F—A—BNFNEH 58223 (82,054)
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

32

122

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application on HKFRS 9

“Financial Instruments and the related amendments” (continued)

@

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which used a lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

Except for those which had been determined as credit impaired under
HKFRS 9 (which are assessed individually), trade receivables have
been assessed individually with outstanding significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost mainly comprise of
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are measured as
|2-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

All loss allowances for financial assets as at 31 December 2017
reconcile to the opening loss allowance as at | January 2018 is as
follows:

3. WMARKBIBEMBREEL

((EEMBREER WERZ)
EREEMBREEMNEINR &
BMIARMEBET 2 REY
gnena)

32

(@

BHREEBREAETZ
BIE

AEBRBEEMHRE
ERIFIRABLTTAAEBR
HEEEBE AREZRK
R A FERANES
FEBE -

BERBEBHBREE
BB B A A
(E@BIFHE) &5 - X
BESENAESE AR
FiER/ A BAREY
SEnEBEBETER
Ptk o

Hitb & BB ER B KR
MEREEERIER
BRNEARHEES
B(INERARBEES
R ) EEGFENEME
WHBEAERERREE
By mEERERERE
ERBEEEAEE -

TREER_T—LF
TZA=+t—BZMEE
BREEN_F-N\F—
A—BENEBEREFEYR
m

Trade
receivables
g5 RIGUR
RMB'000
AREFT

At 31 December 2017 — HKAS 39 R=Z—tF+-A=+—H
— BB ERE 9% 4,000

Amounts remeasured through BRFNRE BT

opening retained earnings B¥ERE 89
At | January 2018 RZZ—\E—HF—H 4,089
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

33

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial position arising
from the application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the entity's accounting policies above, the
opening consolidated statement of financial position had to be restated.
The following table shows the adjustments recognised for each individual

line item. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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3. HARKBIEBRUBREER

(TEBRBESERNNERZ)

33 BARAHENSENEAMBR
REZHE

MR CRE R 2 DR

2 FPEANBRAXEEE

5| - TERFITHE BBEA #R

A% - TRFRATEEDY

included. ZK)18R -
31 December | January
2017 HKFRS 9 2018
“TtF ARMBHRE —B-N\FE
TZA=t—R  ERFIF -A-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT AR¥TR
(Audited) (Restated)
(&%) (ZE5)
Non-current Assets FREBEE
Others with no adjustments AR A E A 12,232 — 12,232
Current Assets RBEE
Trade receivables B SR HIE 58312 (89) 58223
Others with no adjustments EAEH AR E M 349,188 — 349,188
407,500 (89) 407,411
Current Liabilities RBAR
Others with no adjustments EAEH B E M 205,974 - 205,974
Net Current Assets RBEEFE 201,526 (89) 201,437
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEEARDEE 213,758 (89) 213,669
Non-current Liabilities FREBAR
Others with no adjustments EENREOEM 9,507 = 9,507
Net assets BETE 204,251 (89) 204,162
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Others with no adjustments AR AR A E A 27221 = 27,221
Reserves &t 177,030 (89) 176,941
204251 (89) 204,162
FEREBEBRAF 123
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3. HARKBIEBUKBREEL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) ([BHEMBEREER |WERE)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective CHEAEYRERNTITREETE SR
B

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs AREBWEEEERTYIEBEMEN K

that have been issued but are not yet effective: EME ] MR BRI S %
Bl :

HKFRS 16 Leases'

BB wELEDE 65 HE'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

BREMBREENE 175 R & 42

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

EFE(BRMEREREEESR) P EIEN T HEE I

—REE 3%

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business®

BRMBREREREIRUETAR) FHHER"

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'

EREMBHREEREIREITAR) BamEZANREEE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

EEUBREENF 0K REEGNEY REFEEBEAARSELECRANEELEIIE®
F 285k (BRI K)

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of Material®
B ERE I RRBBQHERESE EAMNESRS
SCHES)
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement!
BB ERE 19K (EFTA) ATEIERT - R RAEE
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
ERGERNE 285 (EIIR) REE AR RAELENRDER!
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!
EEMBHREER(BFTAX) ERMBREREN - T-REE Tt FRHNNFELE!
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019 RoB—NE— B —A%y BELE
FREHREN
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021 2 RoE-—F— AR ALY
FEHRER
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined 3 WiET B RSk > S B A K E S MR 4
Eos
¢ Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition 4 WA S-S5 —A—0
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after | > BB AE B BRIk T B 1
ity 00 EBafREERBLEN
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020 5 R-E-—TE— f—QrBEng
FRERAR
‘l 24 NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 6 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS |7 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 6 requires sales
and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS
I5 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.

HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

B
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents other operating lease payments as
operating cash flows. Upon application of the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively by the Group
and upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as investing or

operating cash flows in accordance to the nature, as appropriate.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB8,624,000 as disclosed in note 28. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value

or short-term leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
RMB427,000 as rights under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease payments and included

in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to elect
the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a
lease which already existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group intends to elect the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to

opening retained eamings without restating comparative information.
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS |7, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in

HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level |,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

®  has power over the investee;

®  is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 5, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, ie. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance

obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

® the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

*  the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

*  the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the
Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (ie. the Group is a principal) or
to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the

Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before that

good or service is transferred to a customer.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

ERERHER@)

& & AR (R I8 MY aE 3 A7l 38 6k X
EREEMBHREREASE SHR)(F)
AU N ER—IRRE - Al IR
RRER  MRSI2RT2RETEHE
BHRENERBE R MR RRER :

. RAEEEOE  ZFRAEDAL
FERA BRI MRNTS

s AEEMEBHELIBEA-EE
E - MEZRBERFSEENRH
RPEH %

o FAEENEANLAELZAKEER
BRRENEE  BAKEHIES
BB A B 1] @ Bl ITH R
TER

BRI Yezm R & PS8 B S f sk R
2l BB RERR,

ZAAFHAEA

ER— S kARPRERMARE
B mAREREAEARNEERBTT
REETEMAREEAEEREE
N)ERZH R — R Z R
(XEEAREAN)NEORE -

A REHEREFBEERLRE A
EHEERmIRYE  AAKEAZRTE
Ao

FFEREEFRAR
2018 F 7R 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018

oo

E-\EFZA=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the mobile top-
up service by the PRC telecommunication companies. In this case, the Group does
not control the mobile top-up credits provided by the PRC telecommunication
companies before mobile top-up service is transferred to the mobile subscribers.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of mobile
top-up service income received from the mobile subscribers, net of cost of mobile
top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication companies or vendors.
Mobile top-up service income is recognised when the PRC telecommunication

companies completed the mobile top-up service for the mobile subscribers.

Revenue recognition (prior to | January 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Mobile top-up service income is received from the mobile subscribers, net of cost
of mobile top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication companies or
vendors. Mobile top-up service income is recognised when the telecommunication

companies completed the mobile top-up service for the mobile subscribers.

Service income is recognised when the service is rendered.

‘l 32 NNK Group Limited

Annual Report 2018

ERSTHER@)

FF &R (R8I aE 3 A7l 38 K 5k X
EREEMBHRERASE SHR)(F)
FAAGHAEA(E)
HAEENBOREERZHTHEAL
AIFER R FRAERS - MARER
REA-ELERT  ERFTHAER
BEETFRAFL ZH  ARETEH
FRENERAARENFHEERE
EREERREAR A8 FTHAF
KB FHRERBRA - Mk E
MERRAAHERBEFRAERE
TREORAERYUA - FRAZERER
BRARPENEEARATRAL T
PR 5 B SR E AR T B RERR

KERR(R=F-NF-A—HA)
W RE W ERA BN R FER
B BER-REBBERTRARGNE
YRR (A il RS ERAHIR)

MTY%%'%W*ﬁﬁﬂuﬁ%mﬂ

EEAREEFN TR RALEER

%$E§%¥%%W% TER 7 g
RS

FRAERERBUATLEFEAFK
B MRERENEREARSHEERE
EFRFBERESRNALN - FTREE
RERBUAREERRASFHRAF T
P8 58 B ST (E AR 5By EGE

FRF AR R S AR TS By RE R,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to | January 2018) (continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all costs necessary to

make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received,

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities which is not eligible for

capitalisation is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes which are classified
as defined contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to

the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from loss before tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

ERERHER@)

BE

PSR B S e BV B A B R R ST IR
HOABAN -

NHENRBEFERRB RS -
ERBEENERBABELR - 2AR
L fth 5 2 0 FE AR A 3 AT HURL A MR B
X AR RBARB LA AR AR
B AEENNHAHRABERANES
HAMEERXEE LCEROB R

B o
et

EEREREEANRETEERE
ff 1 B T L S B SR PR AR 1
BB AWML EES 2R - AR
BHEEEE-RERAAEEHES
fF - 1052 7 45 0 30 R0 A PR SR
ERETNREEEE 8- RE R
EUNAENEERREEHEEE -
MEENSRZ-EXFHEERE R
T A 30 40 5 SR B P @ 31 )
MEEZE ATERBRSEEHNE
AERALE -

ELHREABERRHEARANR AR
HOERRE R ZRER - EARE R
EHARERZEROQBE RAKA
RTERONERERRI - BZFR
BRESHEERNARERZEME
ENEREHBEE BN CHERK
M EHER R AR EREEE
TR 5% 2R 138 0 B R

FFEREEFRAR
2018 F 7R 135
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle

its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted

for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment

loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since | January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and

S the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

S the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a

business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

S it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing

so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting

period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, other receivables and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, |2m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within |2 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the industry default rates quoted by a credit agent, adjusted for any factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the

current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and/or

collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to [2m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

()

142

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

0 significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread and the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor;

0 an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has
an internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally

understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying

significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4 EEEHBESE)
Financial instruments (continued) SRMIAE)
Financial assets (continued) EHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in TR EERE(RIZH 3878 F 1R JE
accordance with note 3) (continued) FE B BREERE T ) (E)
(i)  Definition of default (i) BAONTER
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default AL EERREEMS  A5E
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external 25 BERNPERSNINRE B
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the BEANKAIGEREEA(BEAR
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group). E8)2EERRTNAERFE
EMERR)E  DEBLEENSE
e
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred Btz REBRE  So@E
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has EaBHBBEOAR%  BRIERE
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging BERBTAEBBINEENZ
default criterion is more appropriate. EFARE BHCBELEENE
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (continued)

(if)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons

relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

0 it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation.
(iv)  Whrite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficutty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the

financial instruments are grouped on the basis:

. Nature of financial instruments;
. Industry of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income s calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case

interest income s calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of

initial recognition.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January
2018)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

® it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30-60 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January
2018) (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received

and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and bank borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

BEEHBR#E)

¢BMIAE)

EHEEE)
EARERABRER=F—1F—
F—BERE B BHEEAE I A)
(&)
REEBERAREREEMRY T
ARERSERB AR REREEN
EHER - AL ERRNRESRS
BREETUER  EZRERRER
BEEANEAETSBARERRME
B A B SRR o

RIBZEHEE

FEEEREEERIRERENAH
Eﬂmﬁh'ﬁﬁkﬁﬂﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁ
EFMBRABNEARDER KL HE
BYR— E%imiﬁuﬁﬂﬁﬁ

ERERRBHAITENEREE
B BEREEED B REKRREEMN
LB ERN BT ©

EHEERKFIAR

BREH AR
BERRTNEERBRATIATIRE
SRHRHNATURERMABERBAT
ANEENBATBAESMRAK -

RATA
BATARERERERNALAER
ERNBENSESNAN - REER
BEITHRATRZREKAEA(IRE
BRATAOR ) HERR, -

KEHRATENTBRE
TRAEERBEZENKE KRR
RARBITER - ARBBHANAE
BRAIRARTE

G\
»i

hmD> %FFF

/

FFEREEFRAR
2018 F 7R 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018

@z

—E- A= HUFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the mobile top-up
service and suppliers of mobile top-up credits and determines that the Group is
providing the mobile top-up service by facilitating transactions between the PRC
telecommunication companies and mobile subscribers, and accordingly reports

revenue derived from such services on net basis.

In determining whether the revenue from mobile top-up service shall be recorded
on net basis or gross basis, the Group has made reference to indicators and
requirements stated in HKFRS 15 and HKAS 18 for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 respectively. Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or an agent requires judgment and consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances, and the Group considers itself as having an agency relationship with
the PRC telecommunication companies by assessing features that are arising from

its operation and contractual agreements.

The features that are relevant to HKFRS 15 are as follows:

. It is the primary responsibility of the PRC telecommunication companies,
instead of the Group, for processing the mobile top-up service associated

with the mobile top-up credits provided to the mobile subscribers.

. The nominal value of the mobile top-up credits are predetermined by the

PRC telecommunication companies.

J Mobile top-up credits are used to top-up the mobile subscriber's requests
instantaneously. Altthough the Group maintains a minimal level of mobile top-
up credits that are sourced from the PRC telecommunication companies and
their distributors as buffer stocks, these stocks are kept only momentarily and
are used to facilitate the transactions between the PRC telecommunication

companies and the mobile subscribers.
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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6. REVENUE 6. W@
For the year ended 3| December 2018 BE-Z-\$t-A=+t—-HLEE
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers iy ERFAEHkaHE
RMB'000
ARETT
Type of service FR 7% 38 5l
Mobile top-up service FHFEERERY 58313
Mobile data usage top-up service FHRERERY 1,127
Others Hith 840
60,280
The Group provide the mobile top-up and mobile data usage top-up service AEBRBRETHSEABEHF
by facilitating transactions between the PRC telecommunication companies BRAFP BN S Mz FMES
and mobile subscribers, and accordingly recognises revenue derived from RERTHRERERS - B
such services on net basis. Mobile top-up service income is received from FHREERAREZERBEHW
the mobile subscribers, net of cost of mobile top-up credits sourced we FRIERERBRATIET
from the PRC telecommunication companies or vendors. Mobile top-up HAPWER @ HBREFREHEREA
service income is recognised when the PRC telecommunication companies A EEEREFUEERESE
completed the mobile top-up service for the mobile subscribers, being at the A o FHEBFERBEAR
point of time when the mobile subscribers have the ability to direct the use HENEEARATFHAPTRT
of the service and obtain the benefit of the service. BEBRERGEEIFHEBPE
S8 TE IRTS A i R At PR S 2 o O
) HER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATON

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors, the chief operating decision makers (the
“CODMs"), in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their

performance.

The CODMs review the Group's financial performance as a whole, which
is generated from the provision of mobile top-up service by the Group to
customers and determined in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, for
performance assessment. Therefore, no separate segment information is prepared

by the Group.

Geographical information
All of the Group's revenue and assets are principally derived from customers in the

PRC and located in the PRC, no geographical segment information is presented.

Information about major customers
There was no revenue from individual customers of the Group contributing over

10% of the total revenue of the Group during both vears.
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ARBRTEE  TELERRE(E
ERERRE ) THENNERARHE

SERBAHNBREBANCESH
KAS B RARRHELRE -

IREERREZNASERBYMBR
B ARERBENELAARERAR
PRUEFHEERERY  YRALKHE
SR BRETAERRNGE - Bt - K
SEVEBURENLER -

BEER

KEBF RS EERATEESMA
ENIEGRTE N m25ES
HER -

BRIERFHREN

WAEEE  AEELEKAE TP
Bk A S B G E I 10% -
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

8.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES HiWARBEX
2018 2017
—B-N\E —Z—+4F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pl AR®BTR ARETR
Interest income MEKA
— from structured products (Note a) - RE#EBUER(MTa) 4,201 5122
— from bank deposits —REHRITER 695 553
Government grants BB 23 227 668
Government subsidy (Note b) B #EAE (P EED) 1,901 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of S E 5 WG IRRE R
trade receivables REEE (52) (4,000)
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) INE W a5 (518 ) 388 1,230 (2618)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE¥3 - HE KEEHER (253) (646)
Others At 6 208
7,955 (713)
Notes: BisE
(@)  During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group entered into @ BE_ZT-N\FER-Z—tF+-
principal and return unprotected-structured products with banks in the PRC that were A=+—RHILEE  FEEAHTES
denominated in RMB and without fixed maturity period. Interest of the structured RIFTHEE RS ERIERIER ST
products varied depending on the performance and return of underlying investments Em(RAREE - EET I HH
managed by the banks. The structured products were classified as financial assets at fl) o I E RN SR FRITA
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. All the structured products were EIRABRENRRRERME © 4
purchased and redeemed during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. BUHERRNILBRARDBREAT
EFff ABRMEREE - IARABILE
ERIRBE_Z-N\FRZZT—+
FH-_A=t-HIEFEBERE
@ e
(b)  During the year ended 3| December 2018, the relevant government authority by BE_FT-NFT_HA=t+—Hi
granted one-off subsidy to the Group amounting to RMBI,901,000, in relation to FE - EEBRERAAEEB
research and development expenses incurred in prior years, which was recognised AEEEENHERIREARE
in the profit or loss in the year in which they became receivable. No such one-off 1,901,000 7L B — R ML #ERE - W ARG
subsidy was granted to the Group by the relevant authority for the year ended 3| AEBEFEARNBRER - BEZ
December 2017. E—+E+-RA=+—HLEFE " §
HERARERAAKERE bt —xit
ARG
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FINANCE COSTS

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

IR 37N
2018 2017
—E-N\E —Z—+4F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR

Interest on bank borrowings

BRITHEFME

4,375 6,393

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:

BREL AR
BREATE R EIRA TS ER BT
2018 2017
—B-N\E —Z—+4F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR

Staff costs (including directors” emoluments (note 12))
Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

BIRA(BREFMHE(HE12)
TERAMEN
RINEM SR

Total staff costs

BT EE

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Auditor's remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services

Operating lease rentals

nE - BERRETE

20,687 22,952
2,587 2,892
23,274 25,844
2,197 4,060
1,629 1,556
596 615
2,775 2,062
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018

oo

E-\EFZA=1—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) FrieBip X (ER)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —Z—+4F
RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥ETT ARETT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") B E MG ([ EEMBHR])

Over provision in prior years BAEFEBERE = ©1
— ©1)
Deferred tax (note 24) REHE (P 5T 24) 4,224 (600)
4224 (691)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from

income tax.

Hong Kong

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a

flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax was made in the consolidated financial

statements as no assessable profit was generated in Hong Kong for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

The PRC

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and Implementation Regulations of the
Law of the PRC (the “PRC EIT Law’) which became effective on | January 2008,
the applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% during the two years.

In September 2014, Shenzhen NNK a PRC subsidiary, was qualified as a High and
New Technology Enterprise by Shenzhen Technological Innovation Committee,
Shenzhen Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen Municipality
and Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation, and
therefore was entitled to 15% preferential tax rate for three years starting from the
year ended 31 December 2015, in accordance with the PRC EIT Law. Accordingly,
the tax rate of Shenzhen NNK was 5% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

In January 2016, Daily Charge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited ("Daily Charge SZ),
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise of the Company, was accredited as a software
enterprise by the Shenzhen Software Industry Association, and therefore could
enjoy an income tax exemption for two years starting from its first profit-making
year and a 50% tax reduction to an income tax rate of 12.5% for the subsequent

three years.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

FiEbiRAx (ER) (&)

R
RER-ZFTN\F—A—BRERNSD
BEXAEHARRAERAEHZE])
REEEE - FEHBRRANMESF
EHVEE MR 5525% ©

RZZ—NENA - FEIE AR
FERERYTRERIFZES R
MEEBE « R A BB R RRIT
BRHBERBEESTRMEEERE B
LWREBERECEMENE BRHE-S
—RAF+-A=+-BLEER=FF
BERISHNEENE - At - REBZE
“E—+E+-_AZ+-BLEE R
YEFEROHER 15%

RZT—A"F—A RRERKRCRI)
BRAR(TRRFEFRY ) (KR BEINE
BECR)ERYTEATEHERT A
[EfrR] - REREEENFEER
EEEMBRARINER=FERF
ORISR 12.5% ATt °
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018

oo

E-\EFZA=1—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

The tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax per

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

FiEHRAx(ER) (&)
FRAMBHRAX(ER)IRHEES
aREREBEERSRTORRAEB

follows: BmE:
2018 2017
“B-N\FE —TLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Loss before tax BREiRIEE (21,610) (19,729)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% RBRRE 5%t ERFAE (5,403) (4932)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose PAHBRORETE 1,991 2,989
Additional tax benefit on research and MER T A B EER
development expenses (Note) (B aE) — (1,000)
Over provision of EIT in prior years BEFELEMGEHMEERE — ©1)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREBBON BT E 3,412 2,343
Reversal of deferred tax asset on ARERERXMN
deductible management fee expenses EEHIEEERNER 5,568 —
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised PRBEAERT AR (1,344) —
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FRMETRS(E2) 4224 (691)
Note: BT -
Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme that, in addition to the research and development BBESE AR RAEEANAR
cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further 50% of the research and AL AVFFEE R ARIN « FTEE A B9 5 50 50% T 3¢
development cost incurred is deductible. PR IR AT AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

12.  DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 2. BE T EFBAEREEN#HS

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BEERETHEATENFEER
the applicable Listing Rules and the CO, is as follows: FREERIZTBARNFHEMAT
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
TER RIRER
e Hitr2 TR CEl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TR AR®Tx

For the year ended 3| December 2018 EHEZE—-ZE—\F+=A

=+-HLEEE

Executive directors: HITES

Mr. Huang Junmou BRRELE 127 1,010 77 1,214
Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer) R E (B EHTE) 127 1,000 77 1,204
Non-executive directors: EHMTES

Mr. Yu Zida M FiELE 127 — — 127
Mr. Li Xiangcheng FEREE 127 — — 127
Mr. Xu Xinhua SRTELL 127 — — 127

Independent non-executive directors: BUFRITES :

Mr. Lin Zhangxi WERTE 127 — — 127
Mr. Qian Haomin BREEE 127 — — 127
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HEMLL 127 — — 127

1,016 2,010 154 3,180
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 2. BEZE - FEFHRAEREEN#HS

(continued) (%)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
TR RIRAEM
iikn H 28 ATEIH At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETE AR®TR

For the year ended 3| December 2017 B E=T—+tF

+ZA=+—HILFE

Executive directors: WTES:

Mr. Huang Junmou BEREEE 130 1,010 72 1212
Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer) L% (BEHTE) 130 1,000 72 1,202
Non-executive directors: FHTES:

Mr. Yu Zida T & 130 — — 130
Mr. Li Xiangcheng FEMRE 130 — — 130
Mr. Xu Xinhua APETE LA 130 — — 130

Independent non-executive directors: BUFNTES :

Mr. Lin Zhangxi WERLE 130 — — 130
Mr. Qian Haomin BERLE 130 — — 130
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HE M+ 130 — — 130
1,040 2010 144 3,194
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e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS 12, EE - TETBRAEREENHE
(continued) (&)
Employees B8
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included 2 directors AEERFRRLE RS FINEERIE 24
(2017: 2 directors), details of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of BE(ZT—LF 2%EF) HFMEF
the remuneration for the year of the remaining 3 (2017: 3) highest paid employees BHEREX - WEAARREERTE
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: TRABRBTIZ(ZE—+F:348)
R MESNFANFMFEDT -
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETR
Employees E&
— salaries and allowances -~ TE R 1,723 1,264
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIKBRE IR 153 137
1,876 1,401
During both years, the emoluments of remaining employees were within RMEFE BTEEOMEDE
HK$ 1,000,000 band. 1,000,000 % 7L LA ©
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the REEFE  ARELEARAREA
directors, chief executive of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an B BRATEXRERRFTMAL
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. SHERAMEERBEEMALR A
None of the directors and the chief executive of the Company has waived any AEBRMBMAERREBRE - HE
emoluments during both years. ARRERRERTHABRMAFE
MEEAME
DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2018 2017
ZE-N\F T+ F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREBTT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the FRERADIKOAR AL BRRR
Company recognised as distribution during the year Nil &8 : B(ZZE—+F : ZT—1F
(2017: 2016 Final - RMB0.024 per share): R -FRARE00247T) - — 9,960

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for the year ended 31 December
2018.

BE-_FT-N\F+-_A=t—HLF
B YERN  ER%EZEIREMK

o

ct
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

14.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

14, BREE

TERATEIERE -

ARAREARESRERRBEEHE

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share: ~ FLEREAREEEHEM S HEE
— loss for the year attributable to owners of —ANEEE AEEENEE
(25,834) (19,038)

the Company

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share

BAEE
2018 2017
—B-N\E —Z—+4F
'000 '000
T Tk
REREAREEEEN =ML BR
INFETEHE 415,000 415,000

No diluted loss per share is presented for both years as there was no potential

ordinary share in issue.
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e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% BERRE
Computer
Leasehold and office
improvement Motor equipment
HEMHE vehicles FTEER Total
x5 RE WARE CE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARBTR ARETR

COST AR
At | January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H — 2941 25019 27,960
Additions RE 1,110 — 1,256 2,366
Disposals & — (78) (14221) (14.299)
At 3| December 2017 RZF—+F+=-A=+—H 1,110 2,863 12,054 16,027
Additions =Y — — 63 63
Disposals & 714) (501 (49) (1,264)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+-A=+—H 396 2362 12,068 14,826
DEPRECIATION e
At | January 2017 R_E—+F—-H—H — 828 19,823 20,65
Provided for the year FREE 9 446 3,605 4,060
Eliminated on disposals P 6 A 8 — ®l) (13,499) (13,560)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+—H 9 1213 9929 11,151
Provided for the year FARE 475 454 1,268 2,197
Eliminated on disposals P HH 5 B i 8 (341) (475) (49) (865)
At 3| December 2018 R_E—-\F+ZA=1+—H 143 1,192 11,148 12,483
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 3| December 2018 R-E—NF+=-A=+—H 253 1,170 920 2,343
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+-A=+—H 1,101 1,650 2,125 4876
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- FiYx  BERRXGER HRAER
line basis over the useful lives as follows: FHABREGREEEITNE :
Leasehold improvement Shorter of respective lease or 5 years HEMERE HENEEECFBRED

F5F(AREERE)
Motor vehicles 5 years HE SF
Computer and office equipment 3to 5 years FTERR 3ESHE

HE/NGY
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

16.  INVENTORIES 6. &
2018 2017
“B-N\FE —TLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRL AREBTZT
Pre-paid mobile top-up credits BNFRFZEREERS 33,600 117992
17.  TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BEZEKHKE
2018 2017
“B-N\F —T—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Trade receivables B2 YR 122,450 62312
Less: allowance of credit losses B EEBERE (4,141) (4,000)
Total trade receivables B o RN IBER 118,309 58,312
Trade receivables mainly represent receivable from financial institution in relation BORKFETERERTFHREERE
to the mobile top-up service which the settlement period is normally within | day FREm & mgEKROTIE  SEHE
from transaction date. For the corporate customers, the credit period was about 30 FRXHBEIRA - HREERF - K
to 60 days granted by the Group. The Group did not hold any collateral over these SERTH0EORNEHE - A%
balances. WERL % FERFT A ERERY -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit
loss presented based on the date of service provided and revenue recognised, at

the end of each reporting period:

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

17. ESZBURRSE)

THARERERRREMEHERE B
B I AR rE R Mt 2 51 60 B 5 R MR (A1
RERBRRE)MRE T -

2018 2017

—B-N\E —Z—+4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TRT

0to 30 days 0E30K 116,885 58216
31 to 60 days 3IIE60K 1,256 —
Over 60 days 60 RBA L 168 9%
118,309 58312

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB168,000 which are past due as at

the reporting date. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB96,000 which are past due as at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over 180 days because historical
experience is such that receivables that are past due beyond |80 days are generally

not recoverable.

R-ZB-NE+-A=1+—-0 "%
SAHEANNREEEAEAARE
168,000 THI EMBR R ARREE 5 E
WHIELES -  AREVERZZ LR
BEMERD -

R-E—t&+-A=+—8 RE&
A A E 6 HR 1 2 % B 3 4% 4E R (B B 18
RENREELSE R ARK%00T
MEKERFTAREEE R IEL
B ARBUVERZSEHRBEAEME
e

RANRIEBELR  BERE 80 KAfE
W —REEWE - AEEERAT
B HEIB 180 KA EUGIREL 2 81
e
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

I7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EZEWRFEZ)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debt: BEREE

2017

—B—+tF

RMB'000

ARETT

| January —HA—A —

Impairment losses recognised on receivables RN R ERE 4,000

31 December +-A=+—H 4,000
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the year ended 3| @Bz T NE+_-_A=+—HI
December 2018 are set in note 27. FEMNESEBFERETEFEIRN

P& 27
18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. BAMNFE RERHMBERKE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTR

Prepayments for mobile top-up credit FHREETESERNRE 45,831 81,875

Other prepayments and deposits HpRNHERES 2,753 2,746

Temporary advances to staff B EASEEA 37 312

Other taxes recoverable H fth R U B ¢ 18 1,382 —

Others Hit 51 503

50,054 85436

‘l 66 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group's cash and cash equivalents carry interests at prevailing market rates
which range from 0.01% to 2.85% (2017: 0.01% to 0.83%) per annum as at 3|
December 2018.

Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than the functional

currency of the relevant group entity are set out below:

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

BERBREEEY

RZE-\E+-A=+—0 ' X&E
MWRERBREEBMENREF00I1%E
285%(—F—+HF : 001%Z083%)HR

LTSI

DG B BB BT A b S A B
BB FEBESINT

2018 2017

“B-\F CTtf

RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTRT ARETR

HK$ BT 22,142 28717
US$ = 43 5
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

20. TRADE PAYABLES

20. BZEARE

2018 2017

—E-N\E C—T—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TRT

Amounts due to third parties R E=H5E 47,788 39,626

The Group is normally granted credit terms about 90 days. The Group has financial

risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit

timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

date at the end of respective reporting periods:

AEBREEROORNERS - REEHIFT
MBRREEHR  NRERAAENFKETE

BHERER -

AT RREREDRRERR
R FORR Bk D -

AHZINE S

2018 2017

“E-N\F CZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TRT

0 to 90 days 0E90K 4,770 5,790
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 2,769 2,960
181 to 360 days 181 £360K 40,249 30,876
47,788 39,626
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

OTHER PAYABLES 21, HttlEARE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —Z—+4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Receipts in advance TR 41,685 35,035
Accrued salaries EitHE 2,834 3,456
Other taxes payables Hit AT 124 2,344
Payable for audit fee = ER 1,595 772
Others Hit 865 741
47,103 42,348
BANK BORROWINGS 22. BRITHER
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Unsecured, repayable within one year and EEA R—FRNEEK
shown under current liabilities RRE & ERSIR 40,000 124,000
The Group's unsecured bank borrowings were denominated in RMB. All the AEENEERRTETIAARE

Group's bank borrowings carried interest rates (per annum) ranging as below:

B ARENRARTERFNXEE

mT -

2018
=

2017
—E—+tF

1ji £

Floating rate bank borrowings FENM R RITER

5.35% t0 6.09% 5.00% to 5.44%

The interest rates of the Group's bank borrowings in the PRC are based on

benchmark interest rate of the People’s Bank of China.

REER DB RITEROF XL HE

ARBITEENREE -
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

23. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 23. BUF#EY

2018 2017

—E-N\E —Z—+4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTR

Government grants related to assets EREERMNKTHHE = 227

RMB'000

ARETT

At | January 2017 R-ZF—+F—H—H 895
Credit to profit or loss FABR (668)

At 31 December 2017 R-F—tF+-A=t—H 227
Credit to profit or loss FTAER (227)

At 31 December 2018 R-Z—NE+-A=+—H -
In 2013, the Group received government subsidies of RMB5,000,000 in relation to “E-=F  ARERRECERBRREA

investment in operation equipment. The amount was recognised in profit or loss BN AR 5,000,0007C © ZHERNEBEEEMN
over the useful lives of the relevant assets. The amount was full recognised in profit AERERRERARER - ZRER-_ZT-N
orloss in 2018. FHRRANERHRR o
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24.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

24, EEHRE

ATAREMBRE RN ZBETHEE

pUrposes: BRI -
2018 2017
“BE-N\E Z—T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR®TR ARBTR
Deferred tax assets BLEVEEE (600) (6,168)
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE 7,936 9,280
7,336 3,112

The following are the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements

thereon during the current and prior years:

AT RRERRBEFERERNEL
BRAR(BE) REEY

Allowance Deductible Taxable

of doubtful  management  management

debts of  fee expenses fee income of

Shenzhen  of Shenzhen  Daily Charge
NNK NNK Sz Total

RNEEFR  RREFRY

FINFEF B AT 4R BB ER B
AEEE ERERX EEERA #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFR ARWTR AR®TR AR%TR
At | January 2017 R_ZT—+tF—-A—H = (5,568) 9,280 3712
Credit for the year FRNER (600) = = (600)
At 3| December 2017 R-E—tF+-A=+—H (600) (5,568) 9,280 3,112
Charge (credit) for the year FRRX(ER) — 5,568 (1,344) 4224
At 31 December 2018 RZFE-NF+=-A=+—H (600) — 7936 7336
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E-\EFZA=1—HIFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Pursuant to the VIE Arrangement, Shenzhen NNK would pay the management fee
to Daily Charge SZ. For the year ended 3| December 2015, the tax rate of Daily
Charge SZ was 25% while the tax rate of Shenzhen NNK was 5%. The payment
of management fee would raise the additional tax burden to the Group as a whole.
In this regard, the Group had recognised the related tax impact in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. The deferred tax asset in respect of deductible management
fee expenses were derecognised during the year ended 31 December 2018 as the

amount is not expected to be utilised prior to its expiration.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of tax losses of
RMB3,996,000 (2017: RMB9,372,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
steams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB3,996,000 (2017:

RMB9,372,000) that will expire within 5 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary differences
of RMB37,122,000 (2017: RMB37,122,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as at 31 December

2018 due to unpredictability of future profit steams.

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.
As at 3| December 2018, the aggregate amount of taxable temporary differences
associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised amounted to RMB133,416,000 (31 December
2017: RMB147,227,000). No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect
of these temporary differences because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such

differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

NNK Group Limited
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24.

REBR ()
REVENZERLHE  RIFFRHE
ARXRFRIZNEEE - HE-F

—AF+ZA=+—BLEEFE  RX%E
RINEHEE5% MFENFEFERHE
ERIS%  XNERERENAEEE
BOEINBEE -SUHE  AEE
EREREHBEEEREETHRAEANR
BY2 AR BEREESERE A
TR WBE_T-N\F+HA
ST-BEFERILIBEREEANRE
BERAXMELREEE -

B A AR 3R 4 1 2R 0 7 AT A -
HRIEBE AR 3996000 (=5 — t
F 0 AR#9372,000 7T ) ERELEHBEEL
B ABRAREEEFBEERLFNA
FIER BB AR 3996000 ( =T —+
F: AR¥93720007T) °

RBEHER  AEENTHENERKEE
BEEARKE371200T(ZF—+HF:
AR 37,122,0007T) B R AR g M 2R
BB MRS N\F+=
A=+T—BUEARFZTENEREZR
HRELEHIEEE

REFECEMBHE BZTTNF
—A—BiE  HREREA MRS
FERMBREHHARENR - R=F
—NE+ZRA=+—H @RBARXK
ARBHEENERHEREZHAE
(TEFERRAELHEAEGE)RARE
133416000 (= FE—tF+=-A=+—
B : AR 147227,0007T) - HAAEE
BB B M MR B S
EBARTERABRRREE - I
ERZEEERAELERIEAE -
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SHARE CAPITAL 25, RA
The share capital at 31 December 2018 and 2017 represented the share capital of RZE—-NFRZZE—+F+=A
the Company. =+ —BERARERRRIRE -
Details of movements of authorised and issued capital of the Company are as EBAARREERDBITRANE S
follow: fEEFIamT :
Issued and fully paid
Number of Number of share capital
authorised issued ERTRARKRA
shares shares us$ RMB'000
EERGHE ERTROUE Xt AR%TRn
Asat | January 2017, 3| December 2017, RZZ—+F—A—H -
| January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —ZE—+&+=-A=+—H"
—2=-\F-A—-HEk
ST A
— Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each —BRAEBE0IETMEMAR 2000000000 415000000 4,150,000 2722
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26.

27.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26, EXEREE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to AEEEEREEES URRASEEREY
continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to owners through the HASERE TN EE BT ERE
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains HEKEES  BRENTEmMAES
unchanged from prior year. AFREARE - AEEEERIEE
K- RERTE -
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes bank AEENEARBHEREN  B1EF
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to the owners TET BB EREEEBYRAA
of the Company, comprising share capital, retained earmings and other reserves. AR AEGER(BERE - REEA
REfMFEE)
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from time to time. REEBERETRHBAERNLERE KE
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class EZRESHMANRSEECHFARE
of capital and will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of b Wi EBRMNKRE  BITHkm -
dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debs. FEBNBOEEGEEM LG L EE,
NG
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. ERMIA
a.  CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS a  EMIAER
2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKANEREE 235,854 =
Loans and receivables SRR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BRERERAEEEY) = 205,209
Financial liabilities tREE
Amortised cost B SRR 93,082 168,595
‘l 74 NNK Group Limited
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables and
bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risks (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk related primarily to certain
bank balances that are denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

27. €®MIA#)

b.

BRERERBERAE
AEENTECRIABEEIRE
WRoE - Bt REAROR - Re kB
2 5EY  BHENFE - HiE
NRBERPITESR - ZZFERIA
KRB BN TP E - BZF
SRIAFENARBRETSER
(BRRER RN ZER)  EERR
RRBEERER  MAREZER
BEOBREN T - EREBEER
ERZERR  DHERKEEEN
SREVEE R °

mERR

EXmERE

AREEmEEGEEE BT R ETA
ENETRITEHEBNIINER
% o NSRBI Y AT S e
R - i B EEEIMNERR
3 % 2 8 B B K SN L B (1 44

Z)-
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated AEERSREHRAINESHED
monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows: EMEEMNEREENT
As at 3| December
R+=A=t+—-H
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRE ARETR
Monetary asset EREE
HK$ BT 22,142 28717
US$ e 43 15
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group exposes foreign currency risk on fluctuation of HK$ and US$
during the years ended 3| December 2018 and 2017. The following table
details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against HK$ or US$ by 5% (2017: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used which
represents the management's assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year-end for a 5% (2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive (negative) number below indicates a decrease (an increase) in post-
tax loss for the year where RMB weakened 5% (2017: 5%) against HK$ or
US$. For a 5% (2017: 5%) strengthening of RMB against HK$ or US$, there

would be an equal and opposite impact in the profit or loss.

27. €WIAE)

b.

PEEREERRREEK(E)

mEER(E)
E¥mEf (&)
BREAT
BE_Z-N\FR-Z—tF+=
A=+t—HLEFE  AEEHES
TRETRBMINERR - T&REF
MASBEHARBEBTIETH
BEREZES%(ZT—tF : 5%)H)
BRE - FTAMS%(ZT—+F -
5%) BB RIEE R EHINERE XN
Ale R B BMET M - BREST
BEBENINEHERREREEE
B WRERBINERE R 5%(=
—tF 5% BHAREBRE
TIHES(BE) XM MARK L
BLTHETRESS(—T—+F:
5%) B F A2 B R
m - gARBEBETHETIE
S(ZF—EF 5%)ME
BaARARERERTE -

% 4

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-8
2018 2017
8-\ —TLF
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETR AR®TR
HK$ BT 924 1,199
Us$ = 2 |

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

NNK Group Limited
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from
bank borrowings and cash and cash equivalents which carry interests at

prevailing market rates.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its
exposure associated with transactions relating to cash flows interest rate risk.
However, the management of Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in

the liquidity risk management section of this note.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 10 basis point increase or decrease in interest rate
on cash and cash equivalents and a 50 basis point increase or decrease in
interest rate on floating rate bank borrowings are used which represent
management's assessment of the reasonably possible changes in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower for cash and cash
equivalents and 50 basis points higher/lower for bank borrowings, with all
other variables held constant, the Group's post-tax loss for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB70,000 and RMB397,000, respectively.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

27. ¢WIAE)

b.

BEEREERRRIEK(E)

S (E)

FIE =8
AEENEHRRRTHSN R
BRRITEFARRE RRESE
MalENREREFERER °

RSB B R A ER N R A
ESRBERENERERNR ST
PIEREER - A - AREEER
EERTZRR  YKEENES
ERHREANZER - AREE
SRB BN Ry HE AT E AR T
RAME RS E S mkEE

}\ﬂio

AT SRR DT TR B R 3R 25 Bk
KRS RRAEEEMARRITER
WFIERBETE - REZATET
RN REHRREENERT
ARBEFEHIRER - IEAR
e RFEEMEMIR L 10
HE A ROF B RITE FIG MR >
SOEEEMEBBRERTEERE

HHREABER T TEHUBNE
BT -

RS RASEEMONE LT/
TR 0fEE 2 R RTERNFIX
EH/TBSOEER - A EAM
BERETE  AAKEREER
—E-N\ER-F—tF+_A
=+-BLLFENRBEESEED
RIS,/ 3 49 A R ¥ 70,000 7T &
AR 397,000 7T °
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27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

178

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of these assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Trade receivables

The management of the Group will base on the credit quality to define
credit limits. Credit limits are reviewed annually over these balances. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred
loss model) on trade receivables individually or based on provision matrix.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group is

significantly reduced.

Other receivables and bank balances
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks

with high credit ratings and stated-owned banks with good reputation.

For other receivables, the Group performs an ongoing individual credit
evaluation of their counterparties’ financial conditions, and the management

is of the opinion that the outstanding debts are recoverable.

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES b.

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

27. ¢WIAE)

BEEREERRRIEK(E)

FERRRAENEE)

AEBENAHEERBSRFEE

categories: BATER -

Internal credit Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

NEMEE Bl E SRR Hitt e BEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired [2-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts

{2 HFTMENRRRERYEEIR HFERRMEEERE-ABRLEE NREARBEESE
BHETR BIE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but  Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 2-month ECL
usually settle after due date

RERE BEEARTRRENERTANE FERRBEEFE-—ABLEE NEARBEESE
] RME

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

Al&E BRANIRRAEEREERR FEUENEEFE-RABLEE FEYRICEEERE A%
B e R LA SRR E IR N WIE HEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
credit-impaired

Bx FEBBRAEMEECRAGER RENRHEEFE-CRARFE FEYEHGCEBE-EX
(1 A HEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery

Ji 58 BREBBRNEGABABRENTE MEFHESE mEEREEE
RHEAASELRAREANESR
2p7 0%}

FEREEBRAA
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES b. BEBEREEBERBXZ)

b.

180

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial

assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

27. €WIAE)

FERBRBENGEE)
TRHALAEERETRAGEES
BHEMEREENEERR -

Gross
External Internal carrying
2018 Notes  credit rating  credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount
SNEB RE 1@ REFEY
—E-N\F BifeE FERR FETR BEHMEESR BREE
RMB’000
AR®F
Financial assets at amortised costs
RBHERANEREE
Bank balances K AA+ N/A  12-month ECL 115810
RITHEER 19 AA+ TER  12ERERBEEER
Other receivables 18 N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 1,723
HitfEUR 8 TEA ERE REAEREEESR
Trade receivables 17 N/A Note  Lifetime ECL 118,450
(individually assessed)
B 5 RN 17 TEM st HFEPERBEEER
(&R ERF1)
Credit impaired 4,000
1!:! = \/W{E
Note: BifsE
For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to HREZRUFENS - AEEERA
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected BRI BHREEAEIRHBELAE

credit losses on these items by individual assessment.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal
credit rating for its customers. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed

based on provision matrix as at 3| December 2018 within lifetime ECL (not

credit impaired).

NNK Group Limited
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

27. &RIE#®)
b. HEEREEBEERNEE)

FERBRRENE(E)

Gross carrying amount HEEHEE
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
FHERERX BSEWRE
RMB’000
AR®T R

Internal credit rating R EEFR

Low risk v 0.12% 122,450

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated.

ER 3 EVEE-NE YN EE kS
HANELBRENLREE I
RIEBALETLERALE HE
AEGHMAEEEHELAR - &
EETEHREDAEMRN - AERE
MABBEEBTANBEERN -
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

182

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been

recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

27. €WIAE)
b. HMBEEREZERERBEE)

FERBRBENGEE)
TRETCREZERE FER
FRBRANFENRNEEBRE

@J o
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit-
-impaired) impaired) Total

FEMEN FEHES

FEER FEER

(RB4% (E#%E
EHE) FERE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®T:R

As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 R-Z—+F+-A=+—H

REEESERE 395 — 4,000 4,000
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 JEF BB B 5 R &5 28

FITRIEH AR 89 — 89
As at | January 2018 - As restated R=B-N\F-A—-R-KEJ 89 4,000 4,089
Impairment losses REER 52 =+ 52
As at 31 December 2018 R-EB-\F+_A=1—H 141 4,000 4,141

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade

receivables that have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

NNK Group Limited
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

27. &RIEE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES b. HEEREEEERBEK(Z)
(continued)
Liquidity risk RBELRER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains REBRDECRARE - A5EE
a level of cash and cash equivalents as well as undrawn banking facilities RURFHERERARTARNAE
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations EMEERRERERERBTFR
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management NFENH S KREZBMARA
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings to ensure compliance with loan RIRITREKT - EBEERER
covenants. TEROERERARERETER
R -
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturities TR AEESREENF
for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the HEOIMAR - ZFIIRRER
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on (ﬁ%ﬂﬁ{ﬁﬁ@ﬁiﬁ%iﬁfﬁ@}ﬁ%&%ﬁé
which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest z%ﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ%i HT%E
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, : ’ 5‘]%@%%‘]?&$iﬁ'\]ﬁim
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the %: ﬁﬂﬂ?fi }#Eﬁﬂ%/’a D
reporting period. SENEREHRNFEEE -
Weighted Repayable
average on demand Total
effective or within 6months  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 3-6 months to | year cash flows amount
RRERY,
TEYS R3fEA AMFRE
LGRS REE  3E6EA ¢EAEIF  REBER EfE
% RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000
% ARETT AR%TR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Asat 3] December 2018 RZF—-N\E
+ZA=+-H
Trade payables B AEMFR — 47788 — — 47788 47788
Other payables HthERF0E - 5294 - - 5294 5,94
Bank borrowings RITEH 576 40019 — — 40019 40,000
93,101 = = 93,101 93,082
FEREEERAA 183
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €WMIEE)
b.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES b. HEEREEEEREEKE)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELRER(E)
Weighted Repayable
average on demand Total
effective or within 6 months  undiscounted Canrying
interest rate 3 months 3-6 months to | year cash flows amount
BREXE,
¥ R3EA ABRRE
BRM= WER 3267 o¢HEAZIF MELR RRE(E

% RMBOOO RMBO00O
% ARBTRT ARETR

RMB00O RMB0OO RMBI0O
ARETL  ARETR ARETR

Asat3l December 2017  RZB—+F

+-A=1-H
Trade payables BIRNTIE — 39626 - — 39626 39626
Other payables Eth 7R - 4969 - — 4969 4969
Bank borrowings EGT 517 74030 8 52,540 126570 124000
118,625 — 52540 171,165 168,595
C.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ¢ EHMIANAYE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing model based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair value.

184 NNK Group Limited
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for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28 REMERRE

The Group as lessee AEEERABA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future RRERER > REBRBEFAREEE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as HEAFELN T HMIBATFEER
follows: KREEST

2018 2017
—g-N\E —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBTT

Within one year —FR 2,342 2,645
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFLF(EEMEBRBEN) 6,282 8,285

8,624 10,930
Operating lease payments represent rental fee payable by the Group for office REHERERAEERBELAMERN
premises. Lease of rental premises are negotiated with fixed lease terms from | to Mie HEMENHORI Z45(Z
4 years (2017: | to 5 years). T—+F | B5F) N ET AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@)  Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel which represents the
directors of the Company and key executives of the Group during the year

were as follows:

29.

ML S

(2)

TEEBAESNHE

ER TEERABGEAATE
ERAREEETHAR) BHE
mF -

2018 2017

“B-NFE —E—+HF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BFTRT ARETT

Salaries and other short term benefits HehEmRHER 4,749 4314
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFFIEIHEER 307 281
5,056 4,595

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

(b)  Guarantee

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's unsecured bank borrowings facilities
were guaranteed by the Company, Daily Charge SZ, Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr.
Yang Hua and Mr. Li Xiangcheng who were Controlling Shareholders of the
Company, to the extent of RMB222,000,000, of which RMB40,000,000 was
utilised. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank borrowings facilities
were guaranteed by Shenzhen Sinomaster Investment Group Co., Ltd,
Shenzhen Quangiuxing Investment Management Company Limited, Mr.
Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, and Mr. Li Xiangcheng who were Controlling
Shareholders of the Company, to the extent of RMB275,000,000, of which
RMB 124,000,000 was utilised.
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30.

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30.

On 14 December 2015, the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme

pursuant to a resolution passed by its then shareholders on |4 December 2015, for

the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible employees, non-

executive directors of the Company and other selected participants.

The principal terms of which are summarised in the section headed “Statutory and

General Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Company's

prospectus in respect of the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock

Exchange dated 24 December 2015. As at 3| December 2018 and 31 December

2017, no share option was granted.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

31

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and 2017

were as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Date and place
of incorporation/

establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

B et &l
RZZE-—RE+-A+HMA  BREALD
AERRER-_S—AF+=-A+MA
BREARAZR  ARAIBEGFERK—E
BRENE TZEAMRRAAARGE
BEE  FRTESREMETLEE
R B 12 o

BER SN E 2 EFBMAR AR R
EROEBRA Emm IS0 RHEA -
F-RFEt-A-tTHENARERM
SIAE R —RE M —FEERETS
—feRZF-N\F+-A=1t—HER
T tET A=t RYERLE
Rk -

i) PR
AREAR-F-NER-F—tF+=
A=+—BRHBRRFFENT :

Attributable equity
interests to the Group

As at 3| December Principal activities

MR, ERTREHRE AREEERE

WEARRR R B R b 3 A/ ERER Rt=A=t-H TEXH
(Note) 2018 2017
(M) 8-\ —TF

Phone Charge Technology Limited* 19 June 2014 HK$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
British Virgin Islands

Phone Charge Technology Limited* “Z-MESATNAB 50,0008t 100% 100% REER
RBRKES

NN Payment Limited* 28 February 2017 HK$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
British Virgin Islands

NN Payment Limited* “E—+tFZA=t/\H 50,000 7T 100% 100% HEER
RBRIES

Daily Charge HK Company Limited@ 7)uly 2014 HK$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong

AREMB(BR)ERATe “F-MELALH 50,000 7T 100% l00% REER
BB
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e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

31.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Date and place
of incorporation/

establishment

31

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

i) PNCIES 6 )

Attributable equity
interests to the Group

As at 3| December

Principal activities

Ry ERTREMR KEBELRE
WEARER R AER Y BA/ERER R+=A=t+-H TEEH
(Note) 2018 2017
CiE3) —E-NE —T—+F
EELRBRARS 20 March 2017 HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
Hong Kong
EEXRERRAC “Z—+5=A-tH 25,000,000 7 100% 100% NEE
BA
Daily Charge S7@ 30 January 2015 RMBI,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
The PRC
ARFARI|C “Z-hF-A=1H AR 1,0000007T 100% 100% REER
HE
Shenzhen NNK2@ I3 June 2006 RMB20,680,000 100% 100%  Mobile top-up services
The PRC
RY|FFRe —TERERAT=R AR%20,680,0007T 100% 100% FHEBRERS
HE
AT SR BRERRERAR (A 25)une 2016 RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
AYFTEFERBERARAA) @ The PRC
AIASRRBERRERARA(AIE T "F A-TIA AERH 50000007 100% 100% NEE
AEEEEABERRBERAR)  HH
ERRNIERBERRERRA) © 31 August 2016 RMBS50,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
The PRC
ERRNIERBENRARAR)C “Z—FN\A=1+-H AR 50,000,000 7 100% 100% TE®
HE

Note: Incorporated/established as limited liability company.

< The equity interests of the subsidiaries are directly held by the Company.

@ The equity interests of the subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of each

reporting period or at any time during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE 32. ROFHBERRARBESR
COMPANY

2018 2017
—g-NE ZT+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTIL

Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REMBAT 12,762 12,762
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments BNRIE — 1,474
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkReEEY 16,328 17,872
16,328 19,346
Current liabilities nREBEE
Other payables H it R 933 762
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN IENGI S 3,345 —
4,278 762
Net current assets REEETE 12,050 18,584
Total assets less current liabilities and net assets BEERRDAENREEFE 24812 31,346
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital R 27,221 27221
Reserves [ (2,409) 4125
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company AAREE AEGRERRE 24,812 31,346
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
BE-F—|F+-A=1—HIFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

32. ARRMBRERBERE)

COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves KARRERE
Share  Accumulated Total
premium losses equity
R4 EE Z3tBR BRAHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR AR®Tx
At | January 2017 R-ZZE—+F—-H—H 47997 (24,940) 23,057
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year FABBEMAMZERY — (8972) (8972)
Dividend paid (note 13) ERRE (M 13) (9.960) — (9,960)
At 3| December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+—H 38,037 (33912) 4,125
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year & A& 18 & Eth 2 I &2 N (6,534) (6,534)
At 3| December 2018 RZF-N\F+=ZA=+—H 38,037 (40,446) (2,409)
‘l 90 NNK Group Limited

Annual Report 2018



33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

33.

e TR AR R

for the year ended 3/ December 2018
HE-F-/\FT-A=1—HIFE

RETHELNEBHE

TRALAKERETDELNEEE
g BRASKGEREEY - BEEY
ELNAGERNARESSRERE

AREREXRRRERECAFHD

activities. BRMETBRENENAE
Bank
borrowings
BITER
RMB’000
AR¥TT
At | January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 80,000
Financing cash flows MERENE 37,607
Interest expenses FERE 6,393
At 31 December 2017 R_B—+F+-A=+—H 124,000
At | January 2018 R-_F-N\$—HA—H 124,000
Financing cash flows MERERE (88,375)
Interest expenses FMERX 4,375
At 31 December 2018 R-B-—AFT-H=+—H 40,000
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LFEHMBRE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HRGeEEREM2ERER

Year ended 3| December

BET-A=t—HLFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\F _T+F _T-RF _T-1F _T-NF
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO000  RMBO000O  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARBETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Revenue N 60,280 8332 162,564 231,370 223553
Cost of revenue W A B (35,759) (38,520) (77850)  (110867)  (105901)
Gross profit E7 24318 43364 82,143 115,736 112,509
Listing expenses Naiilaha — — — (24.240) (7,287)
(Loss) profit before tax PR AT (B 1R) A (21,610) (19,729) 34,650 38527 59,444
Income tax (expense) credit i (Ax)E% (4.224) 691 (1,105) (11,724) (4941
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ~ JA N A L EIGFE A (E518) & F -
— owners of the Company —ADEHEEA (25,834) (19,038) 33,545 26,803 54,520
— non-controlling interests — RS — ¥ — — (17)
Loss for the year from discontinued /NGIE Z N
operation attnbutable to owners FEIEE&IE
of the Company REXBFNBRE — — — — (26,065)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive ~ (E518) & FI R 2E(FX)
(expense) income W (25,834) (19,038) 33,545 26,803 28438
(Loss) earnings per share — basic from BT & E BN FRER
continuing operation (RMB) (B1R)BM(ARET) (0.06) (0.05) 008 0.09 0.18
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BRFREEREE
As at 3| December
R+=A=t+-8
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\F ZT—+F —T-RF ZT-1F —T-MF
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO000  RMBO000  RMBO0O
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTRT ARETRT ARETRT
Total assets BEE 321,155 419,732 413458 602,799 409,223
Total liabilities mamE 142,827 215481 180,209 478,005 311,232
Total equity B 178,328 204251 233,249 124,794 97,991
~| 92 NNK Group Limited
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